Jefferson County Planning Commission
Agenda
June 28, 2021 meeting

7:00 P.M. – Zoom Video Conference
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, June 28th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via Zoom
Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety. All reports will be
posted online at https://www.jfcountyks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning Commission) no later
than Wednesday, June 23rd.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward@jfcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone – and only
such persons – to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are
strongly recommended at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, June 28th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward@jfcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
Item 1:

CALL TO ORDER

Item 2:

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Item 3:

ROLL CALL

Item 4:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 24, 2021 Meeting

Item 5:

PUBLIC HEARINGS
HEARING PROCEDURE:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
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Staff Report Presentation
Commission Questions of Staff Report
Applicant Presentation
Public Comment (Proponent then Opponent)
Applicant Rebuttal
Commission Action

SUBMITTAL OF EXHIBITS FOR THE
RECORD:
A.
B.
C.
D.

Jefferson County Zoning Regulations
Jefferson County Subdivision Regulations
Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan
All Visual Aid Presentations with Aerial
Maps, Site Plans, and Plats
E. All Application Files in their Entirety
Including Staff Reports

I.

Z2021-05: A request to consider a change in zoning from Agricultural to Rural Residential
for a parcel located at 10041 Meriden Rd, Meriden KS 66512. This request is brought by
owner Anthony Adams of 21702 W 61st St, Shawnee, KS 66218.

II.

PR2021-02 and Z2021-06: A request to consider the final plat of the Hunt’s Acres
Subdivision. A 4-lot subdivision generally located at the NE corner of 74th St and West Lake
Rd, where the smallest lot is 3.76 acres +/-. Also, a request to rezone all lots from Rural
Residential to Suburban Residential. This request is brought by owner William K Hunt
located at 6922 74th St, Meriden, KS 66512.

III.

PR2021-03 and Z2021-07: A request to consider the final plat of the Cannon Ridge
Subdivision. A 2-lot subdivision generally located on the north side of 35th St between US59 Hwy and Pawnee Rd, where the smallest lot is 4.15 acres +/-. Also, a request to rezone
Lot 1 from Rural Residential to Suburban Residential. This request is brought by owner Jacob
Cannon located at 14630 35th St, Perry, KS 66073.

IV.

DP2021-02: A request to consider an amended Development Plan for planned
improvements at an existing convenience store and storage facility permitted as conditional
use CU1995-10. This request is on property located at 4538 K-237 Hwy, Ozawkie, KS
66070. This request is brought by agents Derek and Shelly Jones for owner Jones
Investments, LLC, all of 11875 Douglas Rd, Everest, KS 66424.

V.

CU2021-02: A request to consider a Conditional Use application for a seasonal recreational
use to include hiking and primitive camping for small groups. This request is on property
located at 4190 Republic Rd, Oskaloosa, KS 66066 and is brought by owners Timothy and
Sherry Emerson of 2829 Missouri St, Lawrence, KS 66046.

Item 6:

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON ITEMS THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA
(Agenda Schedule Allowance: 30 minutes or 5 minutes per spokesperson)

Item 7:

OLD BUSINESS, GENERAL STAFF REPORT
I.

DP2021-01: A request to consider an amended Development Plan for planned
improvements at an existing Agritainment farm business permitted as conditional use
CU2002-01. This request is on property located at 5991 17th St, Grantville, KS 66429 and
is brought by owners Julie and Gary Starr of Gary’s Berries at the same address.

II.

Consider potential draft text amendment TA2021-01 to sections of the Zoning and
Subdivision Regulations pertaining to application requirements and Zoning
Certificate/building permit procedures.

Item 8:

NEW BUSINESS

Item 9:

ADJOURNMENT

Protest Petitions: Any protest petition must be filed in the Office of the County Clerk within 14 days from the conclusion of the public
hearing held by the Planning Commission.
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UNOFFICIAL
UNOFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
Minutes of the Planning Commission
Meeting of May 24th, 2021
Item 1.

Call to Order.

Item 2.

Approval of the Agenda

Secretary Scherer moved to accept the agenda as presented and Commissioner Benyshek seconded.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Johnson
Chairman

Matt
Scherer
Secretary

Stephen
Phillips

Gale
Rudolph

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Aye

Aye

Aye

Aye

--

--

Paul
Johnson
Chairman

Matt
Scherer
Secretary

Stephen
Phillips

Gale
Rudolph

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Present

Present

Present

Present

--

--

DNV
Motion Passed 4-0
Item 3.

Roll Call

Item 4.

Present

Approval of the April 26th, 2021, meeting minutes

Chairman Johnson asked if there were any corrections for the minutes. Chairman Johnson asked for a motion to
approve the minutes. Secretary Scherer moved to approve the minutes as presented and Commissioner Benyshek
seconded.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Matt
Stephen
Gale
Johnson
Scherer
Phillips
Rudolph
Chairman
Secretary
DNV
Aye
Aye
Aye
Motion Passed 4-0
Item 5.

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Aye

--

--

Public Hearing

Chairman Johnson explained the commission meetings procedures to the public and opened the public hearing.
During this time, staff asked who was here for the first case and the applicant and his surveyor were the only ones.
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Chairman Johnson asked if anyone had ex parte communications with someone involved in the case or if a member
has a potential conflict of interest regarding this case. No one had.
Z2021-04: A request to consider a change in zoning from Rural Residential to Agricultural for two parcels on the
west side of Thompsonville Rd between 22nd St and US 24 Hwy. This request is brought by owners Patrick and
Kerry Schafer of 9474 22nd St in preparation for a future Ag Lot Split.
Chairman Johnson asked staff to give their report.
Staff gave their report. After their report, Chairman Johnson asked the board if they had any questions for staff.
Chairman Johnson: Seeing none, then we'll move on to the applicant at this point. Is that Patrick Schafer?
Applicant Pat Schafer: Yes, sir. That is me. If you, I don't know what you're looking for, from me, better than what Kelly's
already said. It's pretty cut and dried. There wasn't enough road frontage to allow it to be zoned AG. So, the parcels had to
be combined. They're split by the Thompsonville watershed ditch, which is why that happened in the first place. A parcel
was sold to the south that was owned by my brothers. Very little, on the 3.32, I believe I'm not sure about the numbers,
was in section eight. The rest was all in Section 17. The guy that bought that has approached me and my wife about buying
a parcel north of that ditch that I currently own. That is partially in section eight and not sitting all in 17. And to facilitate
that, through Kelly's recommendation, and Jess Noll’s hard work, this is what we've come up with to be the best way to
approach and to change the zoning to allow the ag split. I really appreciate you all taking your time with this.
Chairman Johnson: Do Commission members have any questions of the applicant at this point. Seeing none at this point.
Is there anyone who wishes to speak in favor of the application at this point? Seeing none at this point. Is there anyone
who would oppose the application at this point? Seeing no response is there someone who has a neutral comment about
this particular case at this point? Seeing none, then at this point we'll close the public hearing portion of this case and open
up to any questions or comments by Commission members at this point. My technical assistant has left the room so I'm
flying alone here in a fashion.
Chairman Johnson: Well, I just, so I guess I'm gonna ask the applicant, so is this, have you lined up how this ag lot split
is gonna go and ownership of the two lots?
Applicant Pat Schafer: Yes, we have basically, it was, Kelly could speak to this better, or Jess, it was quit claimed across
to get the two connected and then quit claim to me to make a single parcel so it could be split. They can explain it better
than I can.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, they were thinking about a subdivision. And there's also a subdivided parcel in the center
there, and the more we talked and figured out what Pat really wanted to do, it just seemed like since it was family that
owned those other parcels that he had a unique opportunity to, you know, kind of renegotiate ownership, recombine things
so that they could use the simpler process to achieve that lot that they wanted to create. So, it's a pretty simple deal.
Chairman Johnson: I'm missing some of the basics here. But how much land are we talking about here?
Jess Noll (Applicant’s surveyor): Commissioners, this is Jess Noll with Landplan Engineering. In all total, if we take
these two parcels and change the zoning on them and combine this all it will be 47.56 acres at that point in time.
Chairman Johnson: How much? How much of this ground is an agricultural use today?
Jess Noll (Applicant’s surveyor): I'd say Pat, what is it, almost half of that, which is what he wants to split off – the
bottom, once we recombine this, obviously, barring the outcome of what we're before you tonight with.
Applicant Pat Schafer: That'd be correct. That would be correct Jess.
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Chairman Johnson: Is it crop ground? Or is it hay ground?
Applicant Pat Schafer: It's all crop ground. Yeah, it's all row crop ground.
Chairman Johnson: So, the total will be 47.65 acres is that what I heard?
Jess Noll (Applicant’s surveyor): 47.56 sir.
Chairman Johnson: And then if you split it, what will be the acreage of the two lots?
Jess Noll (Applicant’s surveyor): Roughly half of that.
Chairman Johnson: Thank you. Any other comments by Commission members? Well, seeing none, then I would entertain
a motion on this case at this point.
Commissioner Rudolph: Mr. Chairman, I would like to recommend the approval of the application Z2021-04 as proposed
based on the findings in the staff report.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, I second.
Chairman Johnson: Any further questions or comments by Commission members?
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Matt
Stephen
Gale
Johnson
Scherer
Phillips
Rudolph
Chairman
Secretary
DNV
Aye
Aye
Aye
Motion passed 4-0
Item 6.

Public Comment: There was none.

Item 7.

Old business:

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Aye

--

--

Kelly Woodward (Staff): Mr. Chair, could I suggest that we do a roll call of the remaining people just so we have their
names for the record? The remaining people that are on the call?
Chairman Johnson: That would be fine. Anna’s going to have to help facilitate asking for participants who want to stay
on the zoom at this point.
During this time, staff went through with each participant that had logged on for the Zoom meeting for case number
DP2021-01 to acquire their name and address. This case was tabled at the April 26, 2021, Planning Commission
meeting until this meeting. This information is included as a separate attachment.
DP2021-01: A request to consider an amended Development Plan for planned improvements at
an existing Agritainment farm business permitted as conditional use CU2002-01. This request is
on property located at 5991 17th St, Grantville, KS 66429 and is brought by owners Julie and Gary
Starr of Gary’s Berries at the same address.
Chairman Johnson: Okay. Well, this is somewhat new for the Chairperson since this is a continuation of a case that we
had last month. And I want to compliment the staff for doing a really fine job and kind of giving us a detailed comparison
of what we know of the development plan that was filed in 2002 for Gary's Berries and the updated requests at this point
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in 2021, for an expanded development plan at this point. We're clearly going to start with the staff report and talk about
various comparisons between the two development plans and the opinion of the staff at this point on these plans. I'm willing
to take a round of public comments after – I know that various parties represented by attorneys have been looking and
talking about finding common ground on this particular case. And so, after the staff report, we will go to the two counsels
that have been meeting and talking about kind of agreements on where we're at. And then there will be time for some
limited public comments on this case. I plead with people that we stay on track, that we stay with specific new information,
that this isn't just a repetition of what we saw a month ago. But I also think that it's important to give public comments on
this case and to fill out the record that will eventually be fully decided by the County Commission in June. Or, if we need
further time to deliberate and find common ground on this, then we will possibly discuss that as an option. So, with those
opening comments, I'll turn to Kelly for her updated staff report in regard to DP2021-01. It’s all yours Kelly.
Staff gave their report.
Chairman Johnson asked the board if they had any questions on the staff report.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman. This is Matt. I have a small question for Kelly. I was wondering if the walkthrough
light show would be covered by the lighting criteria or the lighting condition that (inaudible).
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, it’s basically creating shapes out of metal frames and mounting lights all around them. At
least that's what I saw when I was there. Gary might want to add more things – there is nothing up high in the air or
anything like that or bright. It's like Christmas lights.
Chairman Johnson: Did that answer your question, Matt?
Secretary Scherer: Yes, it did.
Chairman Johnson: Any other questions by Commission members for Kelly at this point?
Chairman Johnson: I noticed that in the 2002… for the record, we still have what, the partial development plan that
we've actually been able to track down from County Commission or Planning staff records?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That’s correct.
Chairman Johnson: So, the summary comparisons that you're doing are off your best understanding of what was
approved in 2002?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That’s correct.
Chairman Johnson: One of the conditions in 2002 was that there will be a review in one year and every three years
after the fact. My understanding is that that didn't happen every three years after the first time.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): There's a discrepancy there anyway, the Planning Commission motion was a review in one
year and then again in three years. And the County Commission simply approved it as recommended by the Planning
Commission. But when it got put in the resolution, it said every three years. But no, I can't find any records that that
happened every three years. And that's not something I hope you guys do in the future.
Chairman Johnson: So, I don't see in your recommendation that there is a review of this and any yearly or three year or
five-year fashion for this conditional use permit?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That is correct. I haven't recommended that for any conditional use ever in my career so far.
Chairman Johnson: Is that because of staffing responsibilities.
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): I think there are other mechanisms that are in place, if there are impacts that need to be noted.
There are other enforcement mechanisms in place for investigating.
Chairman Johnson: So, you basically reply, it comes down to a complaint-driven review process.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That is correct. And that is what the County Commission has authorized our department to do
for enforcement – it is my understanding they have agreed to a complaint-driven process.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, can I make a comment?
Chairman Johnson: Sure, Matt.
Secretary Scherer: I'd also like to point out that permit conditions like that are not a condition on the activities of the
applicant, but rather on the County. I actually don't think we should be writing permit conditions of that kind.
Chairman Johnson: Well, there are a few other questions that I want to go into with staff, but I think at this point, unless
other Commission members have specific questions for Kelly at this point, I think we'll go to the applicant, Gary Starr, and
his attorney representation.
Tim Resner (Lawyer for Gary Starr): Mr. Chair can you hear me ok? Again, Tim Resner. I represent the Starrs in this
matter. As I indicated in my letter to you all last week, the Starrs are agreeable to the conditions proposed by the Zoning
Administrator in this case, we certainly appreciate all the time and effort she's put into this matter. It's been pretty extensive,
as far as I understand. The conditions were born out of the due diligence of the Zoning Administrator and the Starrs. We
also engaged in negotiations with Mr. Hutton and his clients, the Browns, which also contributed to what we proposed to
the Commission in this case. From a larger perspective, what we’re agreeable to address is various concerns that have been
presented. The conditions address sanitation and water concerns, lighting, noise, including fireworks and apple cannons,
which were two items that were expressly identified, parking and dust control. What we understood the Commission
directed us to do was negotiate it, and if we couldn't reach a comprehensive agreement then the parties were to submit their
proposals, which is where we're at currently. We have on behalf of the Starrs proposed some additional conditions on top
of what is identified in the staff report, and I'd like to touch on those briefly and provide you all our perspective with respect
to those conditions. The first is a definitional condition which was proposed by Mr. Hutton and his clients. We did add a
caveat, however, to that definition, and that is consistent with your zoning regulations. We do not want to limit what's
already been approved. And so that language was inserted there that we also recited the definition from, or at least
referenced it, the definition from a Kansas statute, which defines the term agritourism, which is conducted, it was included
in this use. And the definition is relatively similar to agritainment. However, we're pointed it out, from the perspective that
this is something that the Kansas legislature adopted, it's obviously a public policy for our state. And the Starrs are in this
case registered through, I think it's the Department of Wildlife and Parks as an agritourism (inaudible). We also have
included a condition where we're agreeable to limit the access to the property to a single drive. However, it does make
more sense if this is a condition that the Commission would like to allow that the Starrs can and should provide additional
ingress egress to and from the parking area in the event that it helps aid traffic flow. And so, we've included that condition.
We've also, as part of our due diligence, spoken with the Public Works Director, and he correctly pointed out that any
additional ingress or egress needs to be permitted, or at least approved, by his department. So that's something that we
would do. And I believe it's also, you know, would be covered in the comprehensive condition that's been identified relating
to, you know, appropriate permits, etc. And then last, what we propose to do relates to the general admission events to be
held at the venue to provide some structure and definiteness as far as the publicly ticketed events that will occur at the
venue. So, we've identified the Fall Festival, summer harvest, Christmas event and Easter event. And specifically with the
Christmas event, there are no imminent plans for this event. It was correctly mentioned earlier, it's a walk-through light
show, which would commence the day after Thanksgiving, I guess we call it Black Friday, to run through the end of the
year, and it would exclude Christmas Eve, the 24th. And Christmas Day, the 25th. The proposed hours, 4 to 10 pm. The
Starrs are asking also asking to reserve an Easter event – there are no imminent plan for an Easter event. But it's as you've
seen through my communication. At least the rough framework that they put together would include two weekends,
Saturday, and Sunday, it would include the Easter weekend, and then either the weekend before or after Easter, and that’s
a request just based off of potential volatile weather that time of year. And the proposed hours 10 am to 10 pm. Again, it's
sort of hard to put an hour restriction on it based on the fact that there are no imminent plans for the event. But that's what's
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proposed. You know, along with the general admission events to provide again, structure and definiteness, we also
proposed hours relating to school tours and private events, sort of a catch-all phrase there. In what we propose there would
just be 8 am to 10 pm, Monday through Friday, 10 to 10 Saturday and Sunday for the private events. But, you know,
essentially that's everything that falls outside of the four GA events that are being proposed. And that is the extent of the
conditions that we're proposing. The totality of this proposal is consistent with what's already been approved, which we
believe it already encompasses what the Starrs as far as the the events they're proposing the times of operation. We think
it's consistent with what's already in place. But it does, I think, help to add some structure and definiteness, and I can see
how there's some value there. And so that is something that the Starrs are willing to do. Yeah, I don't know, Mr. Chair at
this point time if you want to get into critiques on conditions or anything along those lines, but that's essentially, you know,
as far as the affirmative conditions what we're proposing to you all, that's what the Starrs are agreeable to. I'd be happy to
take any questions. If you want me to continue on, I'll certainly do that as well.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Mr. Chair, could I say something at the, at this point?
Chairman Johnson: Sure.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): It looks like I neglected somehow to see this message from you, Tim, that you sent, and I don't
think it got sent to the Planning Commission members. So, I was hoping you'd let me share my screen so you can view it
with your eyes.
Tim Resner (Lawyer for Gary Starr): Okay. All right. Is that my letter of May 20th? Yes. Okay.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes, I do apologize. So, Paul, would it be all right for you if I shared this letter briefly, so you
can look it over? I can also share Mr. Hutton's letter as well, which I think you did get?
Chairman Johnson: Sure. Go ahead and put it up on the screen at this point.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Can you read it?
Chairman Johnson: Obviously, it'd be a lot easier if it was in people's own email accounts or, you know.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I did send it to everyone just a minute ago, but I knew that you're not able to view it that way.
Chairman Johnson: Well, if it was, Kelly, was it fully explained by the attorney?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Tim? Tim, do you feel that your letter was fully explained?
Tim Resner (Lawyer for Gary Starr): I think so. I think so. Yeah. Again, I've covered the general admission events that
the Starrs are willing to limit the use to. And then again, the operating hours for any non-general admission events. So, I
think that that should be included. Or I'm sorry, covered.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Okay, again, I do apologize.
Chairman Johnson: Tim, I have a question for you when you say non general admission. So, besides school events, we're
talking about a whole array of potential private events, weddings, graduations, family get togethers. Any and all that falls
under what you classify as private events.
Tim Resner (Lawyer for Gary Starr): Correct? Yeah. I mean, anything that I throw a definition on it, anything that
wouldn't be offered for public sale, public attendance, I would term a private event.
Chairman Johnson: Is there any limits? The number of private events that can happen year round?
Tim Resner (Lawyer for Gary Starr): No, no. If you have any specific questions as to the private events that have been
held, or would be held, I think Mr. Starr would be best to address that question.
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Chairman Johnson: Tim, is there any limitation on number of attendees for these private events?
Tim Resner (Lawyer for Gary Starr): No, not not that I'm aware of.
Chairman Johnson: So, it could be 1700 people?
Tim Resner (Lawyer for Gary Starr): I suppose it could be, but I don't think that is consistent with the types of events
that they've held in the past, but there is no express limitation.
Chairman Johnson: But they are trying to build a venue at this point by terms of popularity?
Chairman Johnson: Commission members have any questions for Tim or the applicant at this point? Seeing none, then
I think the best way to proceed is to go to Mr. Hutton and get an accounting of the letter sent to the Commission and to
their take on the negotiations to this point.
John Hutton (Lawyer for Brown family): Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission, again, my name is John Hutton,
I represent the Brown family, appreciate the opportunity to appear this evening and outline my client's position in a little
more detail. As Ms. Woodward indicated, I believe that y'all have a copy of my May 20, 2021, correspondence that kind
of outlines our general concerns, but then also mentions where we are as it relates to the negotiations with Mr. and Mrs.
Starr by virtue of the attachments that I've added to the letter. I do think we made some progress in terms of the road
maintenance. Talked about the apple cannon, moving that around a little bit. I don't know whether that's something that's
completely baked in yet. But I think there was some understanding, or at least a recognition, on the part of Mr. Starr that
that was an issue. I will tell you that we can negotiate until the (inaudible) won't have it on all these other issues, but the
main issues, or the main issue is the allowance of these, I guess you'll call them, general attendance, festivals, whatever
you want to call them. My argument and my letter that I think y'all had a chance to look at was that under the present
system, under the present application, rather, it mentions a summer harvest, it mentions a fall festival. Now, the summer
harvest, as you know, has not been something that has happened over the last few years. In fact, I think the summer harvest
was really kind of what this one Gary's Berries started out to be, which was a venue to sell berries, obviously, and other
things during the summer. And I think a lot of the neighbors in the area, years ago, decades ago, kind of said, well, sure,
let him, why can't a guy sell berries on his ground on his farm? I mean, that's, how much more American can you get than
that, right? But obviously, it's turned into something much, much more intrusive to the neighborhood in terms of the Fall
Festival. I don't want to replow all the ground that we went over a month ago, as it relates to my client’s concerns about
the Fall Festival, how intrusive it is, I think it's fairly clear to this body, that my clients, given their proximity to this use,
have significant problems with the Fall Festival, but they tend to be reasonable people and they don't, they're not out to
blow the Fall Festival up. They just would like someone in power on a commission in Jefferson County to empathize with
them as it relates to piling on more festivals to this property, which directly affects the ability of my clients to enjoy their
real property. And I, and I always hesitate in these situations, to think that I'm in a position to tell a commission or a County
Commission or whatever what to do, how to do it, you know, but my gosh, if this isn’t the role of the Planning Commission
in a particular county, in the State of Kansas, to limit this kind of use on behalf of the neighborhood, which just happens
to include a number of other neighbors, it just happens to be my clients are the ones that are closest and took the initiative
and the expense, frankly, to hire a lawyer and try to drive their point home. But my point is, is that that's the real issue. I
mean, we can run around, and we can do some conditions on this, that and the other thing, but if we're going to allow
Easter, we're going to allow Christmas, on top of all of these private things that nobody has any kind of a limit on apparently.
You know, I don't have a lot more to say about it, other than to implore you members of the Commission, to put yourself
in my client’s role as a landowner immediately next to this facility. There is no tree line. There is no waterway there is no
nothing other than open field that the sound, the noise, the everything rolls across. How would you react? How would you
feel if your property rights were affected, if you had to put up with not only a fall festival, which you're kind of grinning
and bearing, to a Christmas festival? It goes all the way from Thanksgiving past Christmas, and then an Easter Festival,
which although they say they don't have any present intent to do, obviously he wants to do it at some point in time. He just
hadn't had time to plan it out. But my goodness, what is that going to be like? So not? I think? Again, I don't want to
impugn or impeach what goes on at Gary's Berries. I'm not saying it's bad. I'm not saying anything like that whatsoever. I
will continue to argue that it's not a great place to do it. I will continue to argue, and I believe my clients will too, that
there's better places to put this kind of an intensive use. But that's a discussion for another day, I realize we're talking about
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this land, this CUP. I do think it is fully within this Commission's ability to limit the general public festivals you know,
beyond what has been specifically requested in the last CUP. Again, as I stated in my letter, it is clear, I gave you language
from both the documents, the old, the existing CUP mentioned summer harvest and Fall Festival, it does not mention any
of the other stuff. And in the amendment that we're dealing with now, Mr. Starr specifically mentions a Christmas festival.
He's telling us he's expanding into a Christmas festival apparently. And that he would like the option to expand into more
family festivals. He lists Easter, Fourth of July, Mother's Day, etc. So, point being, there's no question but that this body
has an ability to create a condition to limit when the general public festivals can take place on this property. There's no
question but that's the case. And that's what we implore this body to do, is to, in essence, say, man, enough is enough. You
know, we got to weigh the interest of everybody involved, not just the Starrs, the neighbors who have to put up with this
for months for what is about six weeks, and we're going to turn it into months, their interests have to be considered. And
that is exactly what this Commission is for. That's exactly why this Commission was developed by Kansas law. So that's
where we're at at this point in time. I do appreciate the Starr’s and Mr. Resner’s willingness to sit down and talk about
some of these issues. But on the core issue, which is the, those additional general public festivals, we didn't get anywhere
on that. And that's probably the biggest deal to the surrounding neighbors, or to the local, to the neighbors that are in close
proximity. So, with that I would stand for any questions that the Commission might have. Thanks.
Chairman Johnson: Any questions by Commission members at this point for Mr. Hutton?
Chairman Johnson: Mr. Hutton, do you have any concerns about these private events, special events in terms of
participation numbers, in terms of impact on the serenity of surrounding landowners?
John Hutton (Lawyer for Brown family): I certainly do. And I guess the point is that once you start adding up all of the
private events, and then you throw on six weeks at Christmas, and you throw on a couple of weeks at Easter, and then
we're going to come back to, you know, I'm assuming you'll come back to the Commission in a few years and ask for
Fourth of July. I mean, you know, it, yeah, it's a very, that's a significant issue. It's, again, probably bearable if we can keep
the general public festivals under control, but if you're going to add two significant general public festivals, then all of
these other issues, the birthday party, the weddings, those types of things, those problems, those issues become amplified.
Because at what point do my clients get a break from this stuff? You know?
Chairman Johnson: Thank you. Well, I’m going to open it up now for a period of general public comments, both pro and
con on this case. I will restate what I said earlier is we're trying to get to, come to, the specifics of this, and if you can keep
comments cogent and directed and on target, we would all appreciate it. We know how substantial and how important this
is to a lot of people in terms of quality of life and the land that they own as well. So, I'm not sure the easiest way to go
around the horn here.
Anna Driscoll (Meeting coordinator): If they're on video, they can wave, and we can unmute them or they can unmute
themselves and just ask to speak.
Chairman Johnson: Did everybody hear that? Either wave or unmute yourself and ask to speak at this point.
James Brown (5937 17th St, Grantville): Yeah, I'll ask to speak. I'll go first. James Brown. Okay. All right. Well, um, I'm
just kind of a stickler on treating the roads. I travel for work, so I'll be gone for months at a time and, you know, sometimes
when I used to come home from work when I lived there, there's enough dust that you can't see the car in front of you. So,
I think at the very least, this board needs to make sure those roads get treated, or at the very least, the County Commission,
the County needs to do something cuz my parents don't need to be breathing in a bunch of dust for six weeks at a time or
however many days at a time, because apparently this thing is growing. It's experienced a linear growth, ever since I was
a kid. It's only gotten bigger. So, it's gonna keep getting bigger if restrictions aren't put on it. I
t makes money. It's a business that makes money or wouldn't be around or it wouldn't have grown. Gary said it himself.
He's a capitalist. I’m a bit of a capitalist myself. When you're a capitalist, you have a drive to make money. It's about
money. But basically, those roads need to get treated. Okay. Thank you. Thank you very much. Comments?
Chairman Johnson: Okay. Thank you. Thank you very much. Any other comments?
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Mae Brown (5937 17th St, Grantville): I can go next. Mine are very short. I think everything's been covered and we had
a lengthy discussion with Gary and Mr. Resner, and we really got to understand where each other are coming from, which
was great. But as John said, our biggest issue has been the dates and the hours. I know that they're really pushing for the
Christmas festival, and I just want to reiterate that, you know, the roads, more than likely will not be able to handle that.
In the wintertime, depending on how much precipitation we get, if there's even half the traffic that came down for the Fall
Festival, the roads will not be able to handle it. And I'm afraid if we approve the Christmas festival, you know, how we're
going to come back and rein it back in, because the Fall Festival has grown so quickly. And I think we all saw the popularity
that the Topeka Zoo had for their light show, so there is no doubt in my mind that the Christmas festival wouldn't be
successful and I'm not saying that that's a bad thing, I'm just saying the location is not adequate for that, mainly for the
roads. But then also, you know, we just finished a fall festival, and then we're going to deal with another six weeks of
traffic for Christmas. And if nothing less, I would just hope that maybe we could put some conditions in place that really
limit those dates, so that way the neighbors know what to expect, if you're living next door to this, you want to at least be
able to plan around it at a minimum. So, I would just ask for your consideration and really putting some limits on this and
some stipulations on dates, so that we're allowed to plan our lives too, and not just be subject to constant festivals throughout
the year. Private events were brought up and you know, we've never had an issue with private events. I honestly don't
notice a whole lot of them that occur, but again, it comes back to limits and so just because we haven't had an issue doesn't
mean there's not a reason to have a capacity or to have, you know, a certain time frame when those should be allowed so
that they don't grow. You know, the Berry Farm became a fall festival that brings thousands of people out. And so, you
know, not putting stipulations in place allows us to grow. And I think we've got a really good start. I thought the staff report
did a really good job of capturing where we at least were able to come together and most of our concerns were mitigated.
And then the last section, or the last item I just wanted to mention was, you know, I know that Jefferson County is limited
on resources with staff. I know that makes the inspections hard, but I will tell you as a neighbor, our big concern for having
inspections, at least every so many years, or having, you know, some kind of stipulation on transferring this, is that it has
grown so much, we're the only ones that seem to be witnessing the hardships of that. And it's really hard to get somebody
from the County to listen to our concerns. I mean, in this case, we had to hire an attorney at our own expense to do a lot of
the research for us and help us through this. So that's where we're coming from and why we wanted to have a stipulation.
And I know that's not necessarily fair to Kelly and her team, not having the resources, but this has grown into a commercial
operation and something that, you know, if it were to be sold or transferred, if it's going to be sold or transferred more like
a business than a rural residential home. Which, you know, has concerns for us that have lived there forever. So, I just
wanted to put that out there to kind of give you some direction of where that was coming from. I think that is all.
Chairman Johnson: Okay. Thank you. Thank you much for your comments.
Tracey Brown (1548 Decatur Rd, Grantville): This is Tracey Brown, I'd like to just touch base on some of the things that
have been talked about already. I wrote out a statement that I believe it's probably too long, but just to reiterate that I'd like
for y'all to keep it in perspective. The size that, I mean, we're talking about a 65-acre piece that’s split up between four
families and 35 acres of it is this festival, I mean this business of the Starrs. It's definitely grown. We talked about how
many cars show up, how many people show up? Well, we just, you just discussed that there's 855 parking lot, parking
spaces. So that parking lot definitely fills up. I witnessed it every season and so we're talking over 800 cars, plus they come,
and they go. So, we've got over 1000 cars three days a week for seven weeks. If you average out four people per family
per car, we're talking 3200 people per day, at least. That is a lot of cars, traffic on our county roads. That's a lot of waste.
What are we doing with this wastewater that needs to be addressed? And then we're talking oh, we want to add more events.
He's already speculating. I think some of the, I think we're really concerned about our county roads, if we, if you propose
that we continue with adding these extra events, what's that gonna do to our county roads? Can they support it? I mean,
we're talking over 1000 cars a day and, like my daughter had stated, people like these things, they will come, that people
will come, they will come for Christmas, and it will grow, and it will be very busy. They will come for Easter. They will
definitely come in the summer. He's got a summer harvest that he doesn't do anymore, but yet it's still a potential. so, with
all these we got a potential for year-round festivals. Well, I just need y'all to consider.
Chairman Johnson: Will you send in your written comments?
Tracey Brown (1548 Decatur Rd, Grantville): Yes, I will.
Chairman Johnson: We need that for the record.
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Tracey Brown (1548 Decatur Rd, Grantville): Who do I send it to?
Chairman Johnson: To the Planning staff, to Kelly. Thank you very much.
Allan Brown (5937 17th St, Grantville): Now, this is Allan Brown. I think passing this would be a total intrusion on our,
on everything, our privacy, our sovereignty, our everything. Total intrusion. I don't think anybody listening would be
interested in having this on their front steps. For this to go around, possibly year around from what’s proposed is totally
unacceptable. And Kelly Woodward is showing total bias in favor of this, and she should recuse herself immediately.
Chairman Johnson: Any other comments? Well, I think at this point we're going to go to some final comments from Tim
Resner, and then we'll hear from Mr. Hutton, and then we'll close the public hearing aspect of this meeting.
Gary Starr (Applicant): Okay. Is it okay if I talk now? All right. I'd like to clear up a couple things. In our original zoning,
that mentions the expanding of the agritainment side of our business. And if you look at the line items down there it says,
“other related Agritainment businesses”, so we're already zoned for that. On top of that, if you look at the current zoning,
we're already zoned to become a full-time operation. It says specifically the business is growing by some blessing, it could
become a full-time operation. That was in the original zoning. When we talk about the private events, they are listed out
individually with no restrictions on size. That is part of the current zoning. We're not here to dissect the current zoning in
my understanding, because we already have the zoning to be able to do the events. We're updating the conditional use plan.
Matt asked questions about the lights show. Matt, they are Christmas lights, they are not huge. I mean, if you think of the
things you put on your Christmas tree, that's what we're looking at doing. When they talked about the number of people, it
doesn't equate. I wish it was that many, but 3200 people a day do not come to the farm. To throw that number out is unjust
on us. Putting limits on the fall festival, that would be changing our zoning status at this point. The other thing that we're
wanting to do, of course, I talked to Tim about it, is creating the Christmas event and that is something we're passionate
about. That is becoming something that I think is a charitable event that we would be able to do, and it would be successful,
and we would give back to the community. This thing has the opportunity to give quite a bit back to the community once
it closes at the end of the year. With that, I'll just leave it open to any questions you have?
Chairman Johnson: Any Commission members have questions of the applicant at this point. Thank you, Mr. Starr. Tim,
do you have any final comments?
Tim Resner (Lawyer for Gary Starr): I do. Thank you, Mr. Chair. We've certainly put a lot of work into this, and I'd echo
Mr. Hutton's comments. We appreciate they're willing to engage in a dialogue and we did make some progress. And I think
through the conditions we've identified; we've addressed a lot of the concerns that have been raised. And unfortunately,
we weren't able to agree regarding the Christmas event and the general admission events. But I'd reiterate on that point that
it is an important event to Mr. Starr. It's important to the community. As far as the roads are concerned, you know, we don't
have any feedback from the Public Works Director, the road department, as to a concern regarding the condition of the
roads. They would, as far as I'm aware, be treated in the same manner that they are at the Fall Festival and that is graded
before and after to return to condition. And that I believe is what the operating procedure would be with respect to the
Christmas festival. Unless there are any additional questions for me that's what we have.
Chairman Johnson: Thank you, Mr. Resner. Mr. Hutton, do you have final comments?
John Hutton (Lawyer for Brown family): I'll be brief. I think we were kidding ourselves if we're underestimating how
many cars actually go to this location with the public events. The obvious question needs to be asked, if there's not that
many people going to these public events, why do we need to expand the parking lot to 855 cars? I mean, there is a
requested expansion of that. Very simple question. I think it answers itself. I'm not going to bore you with too many more
repetitious arguments. I think you all understand where I'm coming from, where my clients are coming from. All we ask
for is empathy from this Commission. What kind of a balancing act would you hope that the people in power would try to
engage in to try to help your way of life on your property? It's as simple as that. It's a delicate balancing act that I know
you all have to engage in. I know there's no perfect answer. I know you'll be criticized whatever you do. I completely get
that. But you know, the Starrs have an opportunity and have for many years to have a nice event but at some point, enoughs
enough. So, thank you so much.
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Chairman Johnson: Thank you, Mr. Hutton. At this point I’m going to close the public hearing portion of this continued
case and ask if the Commission members have questions of staff or information requests at this point.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, this is Matt. Kelly, could you expand a little bit on what public works (inaudible) about
the application of (inaudible) dust control?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Pardon me, what they said about dust control? Is that what you said? Okay. They want the Starrs
to use the same chemical that the County contracts with an outside firm to use on all county roads. And that is done once
a year after grading on the county roads.
Secretary Scherer: That actually kind of gets to my question. It appears that the way that the proposed condition is written
it would be up to Mr. Starr to determine when to apply in the month of June and May. It seemed more likely that it would
be reasonable to have Public Works direct when the application (inaudible).
Kelly Woodward (Staff): (Reading the condition), “Owner/operator shall provide dust control measures approved by
County Public Works Department.” And then it goes into the materials, and it goes into the location – “said dust control
shall be applied one time per calendar year during the month of May or June.” That’s what the condition says?
Secretary Scherer: Yes, it just seemed to me like it'd be more … I don't know if you any discussions with Public Works,
but Public Works probably ought to just say it shall be applied between June 16 and June 20 in this year or whatever.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That’s okay with me? I don't know if they will.
Secretary Scherer: Yeah, I don't know what (inaudible) Public Works is kind of what I was trying to get to.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Or you could change it to say on a schedule recommended by Public Works.
Secretary Scherer: Yeah. And I, I guess my question is just for, the Public Works had asked for the language that you
provided?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, they provided me with the language except it was more specific and less extensive.
More specific as to naming the contractor, you know, and I said, well, Ben, you probably don't want to do that, because
you may change contractors.
Secretary Scherer: Thank you.
Chairman Johnson: Other questions by Commission members at this point?
Commissioner Benyshek: Mr. Chairman, Tim here, I just want to make sure I fully understanding all the details here. And
this is probably geared towards Kelly, as far as my question goes. I just want to make sure that the current conditional use
permit that's in place as of right now, as Mr. Starr reiterated, does allow for expansion of the business, and obviously, that's
why we are reviewing a potential updated, or reviewing the updated conditional use permit deal here? And then that, you
know, basically, if we recommend approval today without limitations that, you know, there are no limitations to how big
this thing can expand or dates, so on so forth? I guess my question is, is that the current conditional use permit allows him
to expand to what he is wanting to do currently correct?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I don't see any reason why he couldn't base on the fact that there's no condition that limits
anything in the current conditional use permit development plan approval.
Commissioner Benyshek: Okay. And that's fine. That's, I know, I maybe made the question a little too complex there, but
that answers my question. Thank you.
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Chairman Johnson: Kelly, has Road and Bridge really taken a special look at what expanded traffic might mean for this
area?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I asked them if they had any other concerns related to capacity or condition of the roadway. And
he said, “No.” I don't know what factors go on in his mind or what he's considering. That's just, I gave him the opportunity
to offer you conditions of approval or information and the only one I got was the dust control. And he said that the County
obviously would maintain the County roads, not any private individual.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, if I could follow up. Kelly, did he mention a traffic count recently? There have been
other counters in my area is just why I wonder if they might have done their traffic count.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): He did not mention any. It’s just because there haven’t been any concerns that have been
expressed to any of the Departments in the past in that regard.
Chairman Johnson: But is that back to a complaint-based system of how bad the road has to get to get a complaint from
a neighbor?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, let me ask Erin to address your question, because she's been here for a very long time.
And she's the one who receives those kind of calls.
Erin George (Staff): We haven't had any complaints in the last 10 years. I've been here for 10 years, except for this last
fall with the floodplain complaints.
Chairman Johnson: I want to, I want to go to a comment you made on page six that said that the staff perceives that the
new specific activities will be similar in impact to previously approved specific activities. So, they haven't had a Christmas
lighting event in the past. How did you arrive at that conclusion?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, they used to have two major events. From what I'm reading in their application, the summer
harvest gathering and the Fall Festival. As Mr. Hutton stated, they're no longer doing the summer harvest gathering. Right?
So, there's two still two major events they would like to do. And I don't know how major that really is. But I guess I would
assume a general admission event that's lasting for several weeks is how I'm basing that.
Chairman Johnson: So, the time of year and the fact that you're going to carry that through the winter and possible road
conditions with that isn't something that should be considered?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I'm not saying that. I'm just saying you can consider whatever you'd like to consider. This is just
what I've given you to consider.
Chairman Johnson: And as we go from 360 cars in the initial conditional use to 855 cars for this, that's just similar
activities.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): In my mind, we at least want to make sure that he has enough room on site so that there are no
cars on the road, parking on the road, for the activities that he's authorized to do. And I gave you a recommended condition
of approval that would ensure that we can enforce that the parking area, the seasonal intermittent parking area, would be
maintained in vegetative cover.
Chairman Johnson: That's not gravel. You're hoping that you don't have that three-inch rain that isolates hundreds of cars
out there.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I don't know how to answer that, Paul.
Chairman Johnson: I want to, obviously in your staff write up you said that the Planning Commission could add a
recommended condition of approval that the conditional use for the agritainment farm business could expire and require
reapproval if the owner and/or the operator of the farm is no longer at residence on site. (Reading from report), “This would
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help ensure the benefits of local ownership and/or management of this farm-based entertainment use will continue.” But
that was in your staff write up, but you didn't put that in your actual recommendations?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, but I did present it in my presentation this evening.
Chairman Johnson: Number six of your recommended changes, you say that any sources of amplified sound will be
buffered and directed away from adjacent parcels to not to be a detriment to the health, comfort, and safety of adjacent
residents. But we don't measure sound right. And we have no standard for decibel levels for what do we consider
detrimental to health?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That's correct. This is a condition I received as a result of the negotiations between the attorneys.
The first part of it was what I suggested to you, the end of that sentence was one that they suggested.
Chairman Johnson: Yes. If we wanted to get realistic about setting limits on private events, how would that be
constructed?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I guess you need to express what about the private events is concerning you? The number, the
time, the hours, the duration or what? And then try to come up with something reasonable from there.
Chairman Johnson: And could number of participants be a part of that?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Certainly.
Commissioner Phillips: Paul, this is Steve, I have a question. Concerning the treatment of the roads, I don't know a lot
about this, other than watching one of my neighbors have a portion of the gravel road here treated. And my impression is
that once it's been treated, then it can't be graded without destroying the treatment. I'm wondering whether that's realistic
and whether the treatment is really going to be beneficial given the apparent number of cars and possible increase. I mean,
if there start being potholes and ruts, and they have to grade it, doesn't that destroy the treatment? I don't know.
Chairman Johnson: Kelly, are you a road expert?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, I'm not a road expert. I asked the road expert. I provided you his input.
Commissioner Phillips: Paul, this is Steve. I guess my one comment is that I am concerned that the proposal goes well
beyond at least what I would think of as agritainment and this concerns me.
Chairman Johnson: Well, it should be noted that in looking at the zoning regulations that we adopted in 2009 and there
are 63 conditional uses enumerated in this document I know that all you have read, agritainment is not listed. Now, we
heard an attorney say that it was defined by Kansas statute, and I assume that's correct, but obviously it wasn't important
enough in the County's mind to define it or put it in to the zoning regulations we adopted in 2009. So, we're back to
whatever was in prior to that.
Commissioner Phillips: Well, I think it was agritourism that they were saying was defined by statute.
Chairman Johnson: Okay. I appreciate that clarification. Because I appreciate what kind of basic statute definition, we
have for agritainment. And, you know, for what it's worth, and then I, you know, if we've heard some public testimony
about the fact that, you know, this started out as a berry festival, and he grew berries, and that made a lot of sense to bring
people in to pick those. That's long gone. I don't think they're growing any pumpkins out there; they bring those in. They
bring the apples in to shoot them out of a cannon. And, obviously, they grow corn to create a maze, but I don’t understand
why this is agritainment, I guess. But, you know, I'm a non-lawyer. So, I don't know what the rules or regs are to define
that. Last thing I would say about this is whether the staff wants to do it or not, I think the County has to build in some
kind of annual or biannual review of how this proceeds. And to keep a handle on, you know, we're talking about tipping
point, we're talking about, you know, disparagement to people who have lived in this land for a long time. And, obviously,
you know, Gary has all the greatest intentions of the world for what he wants to do with this enterprise. But what is, where
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is that balance between his right to develop and expand this operation versus the livelihoods and property rights of a lot of
neighboring properties?
Chairman Johnson: So, comments from Commission members about the next steps with this?
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, just to proceed, I would make a motion if that will be acceptable?
Chairman Johnson: Motions are in order.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, I recommend that we recommend to the County Commissioners approval of application
DP2021-01, an amended development plan for CU2002-01 with the following conditions. I have several concerns about
some of the conditions but to make it easier, I'll just start with saying that the conditions should be the ones provided by
staff. And in addition, which would be Condition nine, “Operating hours shall be no earlier than 8 am on weekdays and 10
am on Saturdays and Sundays. And operating hours shall be no later than 10 pm on any day of the week.” And Condition
10, “Two general admission events”, excuse me, “two new general admission events would be permitted, a Christmas
event between the Friday after Thanksgiving and December 31, with hours of 4 pm to 10 pm, and an Easter event that will
take place over two weekends, including two out of three weekends around Easter.” The last two conditions are in Mr.
Starr's attorney’s letter. Those are the only two additional conditions that I would offer at this time.
Chairman Johnson: Second to Matt’s motion at this point? Not seeing a second at this point, we're back to the basic
question of what are the next steps that Commission members are favoring?
Commissioner Phillips: So, question on procedure, does the motion die for lack of second or reopen for other motions?
Chairman Johnson: We are open to other motions.
Commissioner Phillips: I would move that we deny the application.
Chairman Johnson: You've heard the motion to deny the application. Is there a second? Not seeing a second at this point,
we're back to the original.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, I suggest we have quite a conundrum here.
Chairman Johnson: Well, we have the option of tabling this for another month.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, I'd have to ask what the point of the extension is, if we don't have any objective for
that time period?
Chairman Johnson: Well, I'll speak for myself that, you know, we continue to gather information on this and try and,
you know, pull together, you know, that precarious balance between the expansion of this project and, you know,
neighboring properties, and, you know, the impact on the County? And so maybe, yeah, I'm not supportive. I mean, I'm
just I'm saying that, you know, that was another option for us.
Commissioner Benyshek: Guess my comment, Mr. Chairman, this is Tim here? I think what I think that this really boils
down to is us as a recommending body, with all that we've heard from the participants on the call tonight, are we willing
to – I think maybe the Commission is all in agreement that, you know, the current conditional use permit is in place? As it
stands, there's maybe not any objections to that, but as the conditional use permit, you know, changes going forward, are
we willing to recommend limitations on events, or the number of events going forward? And I believe that's kind of the
issue where we're stuck. We've had a motion for approval, for the most part as presented, or presented a motion to turn
down the application altogether. So as Mr. Hutton related to the real issue here is maybe not Gary Starr’s operation as it
exists, but the additional events, so I would be curious to hear other comments from Commissioners if we are willing to
move forward with putting a number of, not a number of restrictions, but restrictions on the number of events to be held
within a year's time.
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Commissioner Rudolph: I would be open to listening to additional limitations since it does appear to be a concern to so
many. I was thinking how this portrays out in weeks per year. They were talking two for Easter, six for Christmas. So,
there's eight weeks and I am curious how many total Fall Festival weeks we're talking? I didn't know if that was broke
down in weekends?
Secretary Scherer: Pardon me Mr. Chairman, I have, I just happen to have the hours of operation from CU2002, or
whatever it was. And it says the Fall Festival usually runs from late August to the first week in November. And there are
a variety of hours noted for each day.
Chairman Johnson: Late August to the first week of November?
Secretary Scherer: Just says early November. I'm sorry, it does say the first week in November. Yes, you're correct.
Chairman Johnson: So that's all September, October?
Secretary Scherer: 10 weeks roughly.
Commissioner Rudolph: So, 16 weeks out of 52.
Chairman Johnson: Well Tim, do you want to make a motion?
Commissioner Benyshek: I'm thinking about it.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, if I, if I may ask Gale? Are you thinking of just some sort of 16 weeks of general
admission events, a restriction of that kind?
Commissioner Rudolph: I am, you know, maybe a total of 17 could be the parameter so that, you know, give, or take a
bad weekend. And you know, where they would possibly need to close down, but keeping it to something that is
predictable, that is agreeable, and yet still allows Mr. Starr to, he's in it for business. He's had a lot of positive things. And
yet I do understand the, the heart of those who live around it. And if it's predictable, I think that that would be much more
agreeable. But I'm not quite sure how to put that into a motion.
Chairman Johnson: Well, being around legislators as much as I am, they do a lot of conceptual amendments to law,
they'll have staff write out the details. Gale, I would ask do you have any concerns about the number of private events, then
the potential expansion of that?
Commissioner Rudolph: I do not. I believe that those appear to be controlled. And because they're private, not opened.
And so, I believe that those would not be an issue at this time. And in the 20 years of operation, it doesn't appear that that's
been an issue. It's just the public affairs that appear to be the greater conversation.
Commissioner Phillips: Well just for the sake of argument, couldn't you just take Matt's motion and tack on to the end
of it provided however, there should be a maximum of 17 weeks of public events? Not that I'm in favor of that, just trying
to move things along.
Chairman Johnson: Gale, did you hear that recommendation?
Commissioner Rudolph: I did, and so in that case, yes, I do. I would like to recommend approving per Matt’s request and
then add on the additional weekend provision of 17 weeks.
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, since that motion is dead, I'd be willing to make a new motion.
Chairman Johnson: Well, I'm no expert on Robert's Rules of Order, so I'll have to admit that. Would you accept if she
took your original motion and added that one item and you seconded that?
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Secretary Scherer: I’m no expert either, but I'm not sure that's the right way to do it. It's fine with me if it's okay with the
Chair.
Chairman Johnson: Well, I'll, pause for a second and ask our brilliant staff here if that is a proper maneuver.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I'm not sure I followed it, but I think Gale was asking to amend Matt's original motion. Matt
indicated that would be okay. Is that correct?
Commissioner Rudolph: Yes.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): And now you're seconding his original motion as amended. I guess?
Chairman Johnson: Gale, you're taking Matt’s original motion, adding yours as amendment and second at that point.
Commissioner Rudolph: Yes.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): So now you have a motion and a second.
Chairman Johnson: Further discussion at this point?
Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, I do have a suggested alteration to Condition eight, which is regarding the dust control.
Mostly just to simplify it and to follow up on the discussion Kelly and I had earlier. I would suggest the first sentence
should read something like, “The permit owner shall provide dust control measures for designated county roads as approved
by Jefferson County Public Works Department using materials approved by the Public Works department.” That's just a
clarification in my mind. The last sentence however I think should read, “Said dust control shall be applied one time per
calendar year as directed by Jefferson County Public Works. The permit holder will contact Public Works on or about May
1 to get direction on when application should be made.”
Chairman Johnson: Gale are you good with that refinement?
Commissioner Rudolph: Yes.
Chairman Johnson: Other comments on this amended motion?
Secretary Scherer: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman. But yes, I do have another one. Kelly's worried about all the things I'm going
to say here, but um, on number six, I would recommend deleting after “parcels” in the first phrase, “to not be detrimental
to the health, comfort, and safety of residents.” As you pointed out, there's not really any way to measure that. So, I think
it should be left out of the permanent condition.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): So, the period is after “adjacent parcels” to clarify?
Secretary Scherer: Yes ma’am.
Chairman Johnson: Are you comfortable with that change Gale?
Commissioner Rudolph: I am.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Do you want me to bring the original conditions up on the screen so you guys can read them, or
want me try to amend them on the fly so you can see it? Are you all good?
Commissioner Rudolph: I’ve read them.
Chairman Johnson: Any other comments or questions at this point on this motion?
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Secretary Scherer: Mr. Chairman, I just like to make sure that the two conditions that I offer that are not on Kelly’s list
that she's aware of. I saw her disappear a while, I wasn't sure.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I was still here, but my monitor lost power and so it cut me off video. I heard you. Thank you.
Chairman Johnson: So, no further questions or comments at this point? All in favor of Matt’s amended motion on this
case say aye.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Matt
Stephen
Gale
Johnson
Scherer
Phillips
Rudolph
Chairman
Secretary
DNV
Aye
NO
Aye
Motion passed 3-1

Tim
Benyshek

Vacant

Vacant

Aye

--

--

Matt’s amended motion is as follows:
After review of application DP2021-01, an amended Development Plan for CU2002-01 for property located at 5991 17th
St, Grantville, KS, and staff report dated April 26, 2021, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the
application with the following conditions:
1. It is understood that the improvements related to this existing Conditional Use may proceed to be developed in
phases yet undetermined, as shown on the Development Plan, subject to all other conditions of approval.
2. The applicant shall successfully obtain all applicable Federal, State and Local permits, including Health
Department permits, for all activities, buildings, structures, and development within the Special Flood
Hazard Areas, and occupancy/use of buildings, structures and development shall only commence upon approval
of a final post-construction inspection and issuance of a certificate of occupancy. Specifically, all water and
wastewater systems at this location shall be approved by KDHE.
3. To ensure compatibility with the rural context, any future outdoor electrical lighting for this use shall be
minimized to the scale, location, and duration of use strictly necessary to ensure public safety, with a customary
intensity of illumination for rural areas, and meeting the following requirements:
a. Mounting height not to exceed 25’
b. Designed and located to prohibit direct light or glare onto any adjacent property and to minimize
uplighting.
4. All parking associated with this use shall be accommodated on-site, and parking will be managed so that the
designated parking areas are maintained in continuous vegetated cover and shall not contribute to increased
runoff, provided, however, that this condition shall not apply to any portion of the parking area while it is
utilized for crop production and for a reasonable time thereafter to return the area to vegetated cover.
5. To further low impact development, stormwater management and erosion control benefits, the applicant shall
retain and prevent damage to or replace/improve the existing tree cover as shown on the Development Plan.
6. To mitigate potential noise impacts, any sources of amplified sound shall be buffered and directed away from
adjacent parcels. In particular, an enclosure consisting of a solid fence or wall at least 6’ tall will be constructed
and maintained within 25’ feet of the apple cannon structure.
7. Fireworks shall not be used past 9:30 pm.
8. The permit holder shall provide dust control measures for designated County roads as approved by the Jefferson
County Public Works Department using materials approved by the Jefferson County Public Works Department.
Said dust control shall be applied beginning at the eastern edge of the bridge on 17th Street and heading west to
the corner of 17th Street and Decatur Road and following Decatur Road north until the southern boundary of
the railroad easement. Said dust controls shall be applied one time per calendar year as directed by Jefferson
County Public Works. The permit holder will contact Jefferson County Public Works Department on or about
May 1st to get direction on when application should be made.
9. Operating hours shall be no earlier than 8 am on weekdays and 10 am on Saturdays and Sundays. And
operating hours shall be no later than 10 pm on any day of the week.
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10. Two new general admission events will be permitted; a Christmas event between the Friday after Thanksgiving
and December 31st, with hours of 4 pm to 10 pm, and an Easter event that will take place over two weekends,
including two out of three weekends around Easter.
11. There shall be a maximum of 17 weeks of public events.
Chairman Johnson: Well, the other item under Old Business is to consider potential draft text amendment TA2021-01,
the sections of the zoning and subdivision regulations pertaining to application requirements and zoning certificate building
permit procedures. Kelly do want to give us a quick update on that.
I.

Consider potential draft text amendment TA2021-01 to sections of the Zoning and Subdivision
Regulations pertaining to application requirements and Zoning Certificate/building permit
procedures.

Kelly Woodward (Staff): I was hoping you would defer that tonight as not having time to do it, and we're not really ready
to address it either.
Chairman Johnson: Alright. Unless I hear objections from Commission members, we'll put that on our next meeting's
agenda.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I would caution that we have quite a few cases for next month. A lot of cases, so it'd be better if
we could wait another month. Or at least until there's a reasonable amount of time to address it at a meeting.
Chairman Johnson: Do we have a number of substantial cases next month?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): We have a rezoning. We have a rezoning and plat for a four-lot subdivision. We have a rezoning
and plat for a two-lot subdivision, and an amended development plan for a conditional use, and a new conditional use.
General discussion ensued about being able to meet in person again, the last set of Planning Commission cases that
had gone to the County Commission, and also discussion about the joint meeting with the County Commission about
revising the Comprehensive Plan .
Chairman Johnson: Any other items for the good of body at this point? If not, I would welcome a motion for adjournment.
Commissioner Phillips moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Benyshek seconded.
Item 9.
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Adjournment – 9:22 PM

Minutes taken by:

___________________________________
Erin George

Approved:

___________________________________
Date

Chairman:

___________________________________
Paul Johnson

Secretary:

___________________________________
Matt Scherer III
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John C. Frieden*
Randall J. Forbes*
Kevin M. Fowler

Brenda Head
Matthew R. Bergmann
Timothy D. Resner
Of Counsel
Paul T. Davis
1414 S.W. Ashworth Place, Suite 201, Topeka, Kansas 66604
www.fflawllp.com • Tel: 785-354-1100 • Fax: 785-354-1113
*Also admitted in Missouri

tresner@fflawllp.com

May 20, 2021
Via Email Only
Kelly Drake Woodward
300 Jefferson Street
Oskaloosa, KS 66066
kwoodward@jfcountyks.com
Re:

DP2021-01, Amended Development Plan for CU2002-01

Dear Ms. Woodward:
As you are aware, I represent Gary and Julie Starr with respect to their application to amend the
Development Plan for CU2002-01. At its April 26, 2021, the Planning Commission continued
the hearing of this matter and suggested that the Starrs and the neighbors opposing the
amendment confer in an attempt to agree on conditions attendant to the amended development
plan. The parties exchanged proposed conditions, met in-person on May 11, 2021 and further
negotiated through legal counsel, but were not able to come to a complete resolution.
In the meantime, I provided proposed conditions to you on May 13, 2021 on behalf of the Starrs
and further we have received and reviewed your updated staff report which includes proposed
conditions. The purpose of this letter is to outline the conditions agreeable to the Starrs, which
are based on the conditions proposed in your staff report and negotiations with neighbors.


The Starrs are agreeable to conditions 1 – 8 as listed on pages 11 and 12 of the staff
report (pages 62 and 63 of the May meeting packet). Please also note that a number of
said conditions are the same or similar to the conditions provided by the Starrs on May
13, 2021.



The Starrs are willing to limit the general admission events under the CUP to include
the general admission events previously expressly approved, a Christmas event, and an
Easter event, as follows:
o The Christmas event will commence on the Friday after Thanksgiving (Black
Friday) and run through December 31. The hours will be 4pm – 10pm, Monday
– Sunday. The Christmas event would not be open on December 24 and 25.
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Page 2
o The Easter Event would take place over 2 weekends, to include 2 out of the
following 3 weekends: the weekend before Easter, Easter weekend and the
weekend after Easter. The requested flexibility would allow for the
rescheduling of a weekend due to weather. While the Starrs have no imminent
plans to commence an Easter event, they would like the ability to operate
between 10am and 10pm on the Saturdays and Sundays of the 2 weekends
selected.


Last, the Starrs are agreeable to the conditions provided to you on May 13, 2021
including those amended by your staff report; however, in regard to condition #6 of the
Starr’s proposed conditions, in order to address the Starrs’ agreement to limit the
number of general admission events to the events expressly approved in the original
CUP and the Christmas and Easter events in the manner stated above, the Starrs
propose the following language which excepts the general admission events:
6.

Excluding the general admission events, the agritainment business
involving school tours and other private events shall be restricted to the
hours of:
a.

Monday – Thursday:
8:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m.

b.

Friday
8:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m.

c.

Saturday
10:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m.

d.

Sunday
10:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m.

Please let me know if you have any questions or would like clarification regarding the above.

Sincerely,
s/ Timothy D. Resner
Timothy D. Resner
FRIEDEN & FORBES, LLP

cc: Client
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Statement for May 24 planning committee meeting

I want to put the area in question into perspective. This is a rural residential/agriculture neighborhood
spanning 65 acers, with 4 single family homes on it. The Starr’s and their Agritainment business being on
35 acres of it. This is not a very big area.
It was asked at the April 23rd meeting, How many cars are there? How many people are there? But these
questions were not answered. Through the documents provided it was stated that the parking lot holds
up to 800 vehicles, and as a neighbor I can attest that the lot indeed fills up on Friday, Saturdays, and
Sundays during the Fall Festival. Then throughout the day and night vehicles leave and others come.
Therefore we can estimate there are greater than 800 vehicles per day at lease 3 days per week. We can
estimate that there are approximately 4 family members per vehicle give or take, which gives an
estimate of at least 3,200 people per day 3 days per week. Then there are additional vehicles and people
during the week: School buses for the school tours with additional vehicles from the parents that will
join them, private groups, delivery semi-trucks, and also the vehicles from the employees.
Keeping this in perspective, that is a lot of cars on our county road and a lot of people with human waste
on 35 acers. There in lies the bases for our concern and opposition to the proposed expansion of events.
The conditions we proposed were reasonable for any responsible business that has grown so much in
the past 19 years, that was only restricted by one condition. Which was, A review in one year and then
every three years. Per documents provided by the Jefferson county zoning office there was a visit on
September 27, 2006 to verify compliance on the 2002 conditional use permit, and stated that in 3 years
Donna will conduct another review according to the conditional use permit. But there is no other visits
noted from 2006 to 2021.
This business has grown unchecked for 15 years. The traffic on our county road has gone unchecked.
The waste management of thousands of people have gone unchecked, with no regard for our well
water. With no regard for our rural way of life. With no regard for our privacy or safety from thousands
of strangers being invited to our rural neighborhood each year.
I feel that our original conditions presented to the Starr’s before their redline response’s were
reasonable for a business of this size. They present a clear definition and represent standard
responsibilities for a business owner, who’s business imposes so much disruption and irritants to its
neighbors.
There are several of the conditions that we and the Starr’s were able to agree upon. It is the conditions
that were eliminated or rewritten that have posed a problem with. The elimination of conditions 6,
partial elimination of 11, and full elimination of 13 and 14 leaves the conditions vague, with options for
loopholes; taking away the responsibility of the owner and the county.
The hours of operation were proposed to remain the same as it has been for the last 15 years, for the
private groups and meetings throughout the year and for the Fall Festival. As rewritten by the Starr’s
there is potential for the Agritainment business to be run Monday through Sunday 8am to 10pm for any
or all private groups, and general public.
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We would like for there not to be an expansion of events and to remain with just the present Fall
Festival. It is proposed by the Starr’s to include the Summer Harvest which has not taken place in the
last 17 years. During the 2006 verification of compliance on the CUP visit there was no longer barriers
being grown or a Summer harvest. The proposal of adding a Christmas Festival and an Easter Festival
consumes the whole year, exposing us and the other neighbors to the disruption and irritants discussed
earlier.
Going by the timeline the Starr’s presented in the rewritten conditions there is a potential for us
neighbors to be exposed to festivals in one form or another up to 32 weeks out of the year, not
including the weeks before and after a festival to set up and break down. Then don’t forget there will be
private groups and meetings to fill in the rest of the time during the year.
Again, how will the county roads endure the potential for such a substantial increase in traffic year
round? How will our environment be protected from this substantial increase in wastewater year
round? What will happen to our well water? What will happen to our rural way of life?
There was much discussion on moving the apple cannons and a vegetative buffer for the noise, and a set
back to respect the neighboring property. In the Starr’s proposal, it is proposed that they bring in there
adjacent tract that they recently purchased to be part of the CUP. I would like for it to be noted that we
are very much opposed to this proposal. This property has been used for the last 4 years outside the
conditional use permit conditions. By using it for overflow parking and the corn maze, it has brought this
Agritainment business closer then ever to our homes. The neighbor at 5937 17th st. states that they do
not appreciate having these strangers coming out of the maze onto their property. The over flow
parking is right next door and they are fearful at night having these strangers so close to there rural
home. Bringing this tract into the CUP would bring increased hardship, stress, discomfort, and unease
for their safety to these neighbors. We as neighbors would be in agreement for this tract to be used as
the set back from the neighboring property. If trees are planted on this property as a buffer, we would
only ask if they might consider to plant these trees back a ways as to not shade our crops which would
effect our yield, or interfere with our farmers equipment when farming the land.
As to number 16 of the conditions. After rereading it several times I am not in favor of the rewritten
form. I would request that it remain in the initial form written. I feel if this property is sold the new
owner should have to present a new application for conditional use permit to the zoning and planning
committee detailing their development plan. There should not be a transfer of the present conditional
use permit for the Starr’s to a new owner.
We would like to preserve as much of our rural lifestyle as possible, keep our water source clean, have
decent roads to get to our rural homes, and feel safe at home.
Please consider all that I have said when making your decision on this matter.
Thank you
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING I

Z2021-05: A request to consider a change in zoning from Agricultural to Rural Residential for a parcel located at
10041 Meriden Rd, Meriden KS 66512. This request is brought by owner Anthony Adams of 21702 W 61st St,
Shawnee, KS 66218.
Date of Application: 04/30/2021
Type of Request: Rezoning
Owner/Applicant: Anthony C Adams
Address: 10041 Meriden Rd
General Location:
Near the southwest corner of 102nd St and Meriden Rd
CAMA #:
044-157-36-0-00-00-001.00-0
Site:
Agricultural (AG)
Existing Zoning:
North: AG
East:
AG, RR and SR
South: AG and RR
West: AG and RR
Site:
Farm homesite
Existing Land Uses:
North: Agriculture
East:
Farm homesite and residential
South: Agriculture and farm homesite West: Agriculture and farm homesite
Lot Size:
31.58 A
Notification:
Published and notified as required
Floodplain:
None
Roads Report:
See attached Letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department
Water:
See attached information from Jefferson County R.W.D. #3
Wastewater:
See the attached letter from the Jefferson County Health Department
Ag Enhancement Area: Entirely within the AG Enhancement area
Commercial/Industrial: None
Prior
Boundary Line Adjustment survey #2017R2440 was recorded in September of 2017
Application/History:
to shift the boundary line between this parcel and the one to the south. This was
done by the former owner of this property. Although the boundary line adjustment
survey was recorded, the deed work was not done to reflect the decrease in size of
this parcel and increase in size of the adjacent parcel. In addition to this oversight,
the boundary line adjustment survey triggered a necessary rezoning of both
properties from AG to RR. This application seeks to make Tract 1 compliant with
Zoning Regulations so that the current owner can get a building permit to improve
the property. Tract 2 as shown on the boundary line adjustment survey remains
noncompliant pending deed work and the rezoning.
EXISTING CONDITIONS:
There is currently an old farm home located on this 31.58-acre parcel that is a mix of agricultural and treed land.
APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
The applicants propose to rezone this parcel to achieve compliance (see prior application history above) and move
forward with residential improvements.
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CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
The subject property is not in an area with known Sensitive Habitat per the Comprehensive Plan. There are no
designated Natural Features/Cultural Attributes that are meant to be preserved on this parcel. The parcel is entirely
designated for the Ag Enhancement area, which is not inconsistent with low density rural residential living. This
rezoning will make the parcel compliant with Jefferson County Zoning Regulations and thus eligible for
improvements.
Meriden Rd is a designated as a rural major collector roadway per the Comprehensive Plan, which requires 100’
right-of-way (ROW) per the Jefferson County Subdivision Regulations. To be consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan, additional ROW dedication is needed in the future.
INFRASTRUCTURE, TRAFFIC AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
Jefferson County Health Department communications indicate the rezoning will have no bearing on the current
wastewater system which the owner intends to rehab along with the house at a later date. The lot currently has
water service from Rural Water District #3. The Road and Bridge department indicates the existing entrance on
Meriden Rd meets current standards.
STAFF ANALYSIS - APPLICATION:
ARTICLE 30 REZONING FACTORS:
a. Whether the change in classification would be consistent with the intent and purpose of these regulations;
Staff Comment: Yes. The Rural Residential District is defined in the regulations as a lot of more than ten but
less than 40 acres in size created for the purpose of providing a residential buildings site, notwithstanding
the accessory agricultural use of some or all of said lot. The lot is noncompliant as currently zoned – the
Agricultural District has a minimum lot size of 40 acres.
b. The character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood and its effect on the proposed change;
Staff Comment: The area is a patchwork of Agricultural and Rural Residential zoned parcels, depending on
parcel size. There will be no visible change in development patterns as a result of this rezoning.
c. Whether the proposed amendment is made necessary because of changed or changing conditions in the
area affected, and if so, the nature of such changed or changing conditions;
Staff Comment: This proposed amendment is made necessary because of the incomplete actions of former
property owners. The current owner seeks to achieve compliance by following through with necessary
processes.
d. The current zoning and uses of nearby properties, and the effect on existing nearby land uses upon such a
change in classification;
Staff Comment: The resulting parcel will remain consistent with nearby zoning districts and uses.
e. Whether every use that would be permitted on the property as reclassified would be compatible with the
uses permitted on other property in the immediate vicinity;
Staff Comment: Rural home sites are compatible with adjacent agricultural sites, and there are other nearby
rural residences.
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f.

The suitability of the applicant’s property for the uses to which it has been restricted;
Staff Comment: Currently no development can occur on the subject property based on noncompliance with
lot standards. The property is suitable for rural residential use.

g. The length of time the subject property has remained vacant or undeveloped as zoned; provided, the use
of land for agricultural purposes shall be considered as viable use of the land and not be considered as
allowing the land to be vacant or undeveloped;
Staff Comment: Not applicable.
h. Whether adequate sewer and water facilities, and all other needed public services including transportation,
exist or can be provided to serve the uses that would be permitted on the property if it were reclassified;
Staff Comment: All public services are currently available.
i.

The general amount of vacant land that currently has the same zoning classification proposed for the
subject property, particularly in the vicinity of the subject property, and any special circumstances that
make a substantial part of such vacant land available or not available for development;
Staff Comment: This property is not proposed for additional development except for a replacement singlefamily dwelling.

j.

The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff Comment: Staff recommends approval as proposed.

k. Whether the proposed amendment would be in conformance to and further enhance the implementation
of the Comprehensive Plan;
Staff Comment: This amendment is consistent with the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan.
l.

Whether the relative gain to the public health, safety, and general welfare outweighs the hardship imposed
upon the applicant by not upgrading the value of the property by such a reclassification; and,
Staff Comment: This reclassification does not negatively impact the public health, safety and general
welfare and extends a compliant zoning designation.

m. Such other factors as may be relevant from the facts and evidence presented in the application.
Staff Comment: None.
ATTACHMENTS:
A. 2017R2440 Boundary Lot Adjustment Survey
B. Notification maps and letter
C. Zoning map
D. Floodplain map
E. Ag Enhancement Area map
F. Letter from Jefferson County R.W.D. #3
G. Jefferson County Health Department letter
H. Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department letter
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ACTION:
After holding the required public hearing, the Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of
the following:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Approve the Rezoning.
Approve the Rezoning with conditions as offered by the applicant.
Deny the Rezoning with findings of fact.
Continue the application to allow further analysis.

EFFECT OF DECISION:
The proposed Rezoning, if approved by the County Commission, shall become effective upon publication of the
adopting resolution.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the application as proposed.
Recommended motion:
The Planning Commission recommends approval of application Z2021-05 as proposed based on findings in the staff
report.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300 Jefferson St Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P.O- BOX 628 Phone: (785) 403-0000
www.ifcountvks.com/plannin6andzoning Oskaloosa/ KS 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Date of Notice: 05/25/2021
Dear Property Owner:
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, June 28th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via
Zoom Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety. All reports will
be posted online at https://www.jfcountvks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning Commission) no
later than Wednesday, June 23rd.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward(a)jfcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone - and only
such persons - to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are
strongly recommended at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, June 28th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward(%ifcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
Z2021-05: A request to consider a change in zoning from Agricultural to Rural Residential for a parcel located

at 10041 Meriden Rd, Meriden KS 66512. This request is brought by owner Anthony Adams of 21702 W 61st St,
Shawnee,KS66218.
You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article
30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to "...all owners of record of
lands located within at least 1,000 feet of the area proposed to be altered...."
Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.
RespectftiUy,

{-/x^
Kell^ Dr^ke Woodward, AICP Erin George
Corfmiunity Development Director Planner II
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1212 Walnut Street
Oskaloosa, KS 66066-4200
(785) 403-0025
Public Health Fax
(785) 863-2652
Home Health & Hospice Fax
(785) 863-3323
j effersoncountyhealth .com

nlefferson

~

JC OU N TY

HEALT H DEPARTMEN T
HOME HEALTH & HOSPICE

DATE:

April 5, 2021

TO:

Jefferson County Planning & Zoning

FROM:

John Heston, Environmental Specialist
Jefferson County Health Department

RE:

Steve Freed
10041 Meriden Rd.
Meriden, KS 66512 (36-09-16)

S, \-\-,

The Jefferson County Health Department received a request for an Environmental Consult to
rezone the above referenced property. The rezoning of this property will have no bearing on the
current wastewater system.
The buyer is planning on rehabbing the house and wastewater system at a future date. A permit
will be required to repair or install a new wastewater system. At that time when the wastewater
system is installed it will meet all required setbacks from property lines.
Cc: Tony Adams
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING II

PR2021-02 and Z2021-06: A request to consider the final plat of the Hunt’s Acres Subdivision. A 4-lot subdivision
generally located at the NE corner of 74th St and West Lake Rd, where the smallest lot is 3.76 acres +/-. Also, a
request to rezone all lots from Rural Residential to Suburban Residential. This request is brought by owner William
K Hunt located at 6922 74th St, Meriden, KS 66512.
Date of Application: 05/14/2021
Type of Request: Rezoning and Final Plat
Owner/Applicant: William K Hunt
Address: 6922 74th St, Meriden, KS 66512
General Location:
NE corner of 74th St and West Lake Rd
CAMA #:
Existing Zoning:

Existing Land Uses:
Lot Size:
Notification:
Floodplain:
Roads Report:
Water:
Wastewater:
Signage:
Prior
Application/History:

044-176-14-0-00-00-005.00-0
Site:
RR
North: AG
East:
RR
South: AG
West: RR
Site:
Farm homesite
North: Farm homesite
East:
Farm homesite
South: Farm homesite
West: Farm homesite and residential
15.87 acres
Published and notified as required
None
See attached letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge
See attached letter from Rural Water District No. 3
See attached letter from the Jefferson County Health Department
None
None

EXISTING CONDITIONS:
The subject property is a long, narrow parcel with extended frontage on 74th St. There is an existing home and
several accessory buildings on the parcel. The lot is mostly field with a portion of a pond on the property.
APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
The plat divides the current lot into a four-lot subdivision. Proposed Lot 1 is proposed to be approximately 4 acres
with a 60’ ROW along West Lake Rd and variable ROW between 74’ and 95’ on 74th St. Proposed Lot 2 contains the
existing improvements and the pond, and is proposed to be 8.49 acres with a ROW varying between 42’ and 110’.
Proposed Lot 3 contains 3.76 acres with a ROW varying between 75’ and 98’. Proposed Lot 4 contains 3.76 acres
with a ROW varying between 38’ and 75’. The rezoning application is to rezone all lots from Rural Residential to
Suburban Residential.
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CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
The approximately 16-acre property is not within the
“Ag Enhancement” area. It does not contain any areas
of “Known Sensitive Habitat”. The property is entirely
within a view corridor (dark green at right) that is
centered on a ridge (brown line at right) south and
west of West Lake Rd and Hwy 237 as indicated in the
Comprehensive Plan. The designations associated
with view corridors are intended to be used in
evaluating urban development that is denser than
what is proposed. The plan offers guidance for
Development Standards in the View Corridor areas,
suggesting that development plans be reviewed with
consideration of the extent to which the structures,
roads, driveways, open space, and other public and
private improvements enhance the views of broad
ridges, open grasslands, major creeks and valleys,
rugged bluffs, steep ravines, timberland, and sites with
surrounding hills. Other than the existing improved
lot, which has trees, gardens and various
improvements, this site is flat farmland at this time,
with the ridge visible on the horizon to the south.
These lots will remain largely open space with rural
residences and accessory structures. Although the
placement of three additional homes will alter the
view corridor, which is defined as high points where
scenic views define a “Sense of Place” in Jefferson
County, the ridge will remain visible on the horizon to
the south. The Plan does not define the elements of
rural character that establish a sense of place, so this
is subject to interpretation.
74th Street is indicated as an “other minor collector”
paved county road on the Jefferson County Major
Thoroughfare Plan. This equates to a minimum total
of 80’ of ROW per the Subdivision Regulations (40’ on
each side) and the plat application dedicates this much
or more. West Lake Rd is indicated as a rural major
collector paved County Rd. This equates to a minimum
total of 100’ of ROW per the Subdivision Regulations
(50’ on each side). The plat includes a total of 60’ of
ROW dedication (one side) and thus is consistent with
the Comprehensive Plan and regulations.
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View corridor (dark green) and view shed (light green)
in the vicinity of K-237 (74th St) and West Lake Rd,
related to ridge to southwest (brown line).

INFRASTRUCTURE, TRAFFIC AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
The Road and Bridge Department indicates that additional entrances are possible on both 74th St and West Lake Rd
pending review.
Water for the additional lots will be supplied by Rural Water District #3 (see attached letter). Wastewater will be
managed per private septic systems. Per the Health Department letter attached, the existing lagoon on Lot 2 will
meet all required setbacks from the new property lines. The Department communications indicate that there
should be no problem installing wastewater systems on all other lots. Utility easements are provided as consistent
with applicable regulations.
STAFF ANALYSIS – REZONING APPLICATION:
ARTICLE 30 REZONING FACTORS:
a. Whether the change in classification would be consistent with the intent and purpose of these regulations;
Staff Comment: The Suburban Residential District is “to provide for the platted development of low-density
residential neighborhoods that retain the character of the basically rural area and yet allow an influx of
residential development. This district is limited to those areas of Jefferson County where adequate water,
sewage disposal and other infrastructure presently exists or may be approved outside such areas only when
adequate water, sewage disposal and other infrastructure, as well as the delivery of support services can be
demonstrated and proved to the satisfaction of the County.” An approvable plat is evidence that this
location can meet all development requirements.
b. The character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood and its effect on the proposed change;
Staff Comment: Other platted Suburban Residential (SR) parcels exist south of the subject parcel along K237. Additional SR parcels exist east of the parcel off 74th St. There are additional SR parcels to the north
along West Lake Rd. This proposal is consistent with the character and condition of the surrounding
neighborhood. No detrimental impact is anticipated.
c. Whether the proposed amendment is made necessary because of changed or changing conditions in the
area affected, and if so, the nature of such changed or changing conditions;
Staff Comment: The proposed amendment is necessary to achieve the applicant’s goals for the property,
but is also consistent with changing conditions supporting more dense development near commuter
corridors. This development is consistent with emerging development patterns.
d. The current zoning and uses of nearby properties, and the effect on existing nearby land uses upon such a
change in classification;
Staff Comment: The change in classification is not expected to have a detrimental impact on adjacent
agricultural and residential land uses. A diverse range of residential districts and agricultural uses exist in
the area currently.
e. Whether every use that would be permitted on the property as reclassified would be compatible with the
uses permitted on other property in the immediate vicinity;
Staff Comment: Every permitted use would be compatible with and similar to adjacent properties.
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f.

The suitability of the applicant’s property for the uses to which it has been restricted;
Staff Comment: The subject property is suitable for the rural residential uses to which it has been restricted,
and is also suitable for those same residential uses that are permitted in the proposed district.

g. The length of time the subject property has remained vacant or undeveloped as zoned; provided, the use
of land for agricultural purposes shall be considered as viable use of the land and not be considered as
allowing the land to be vacant or undeveloped;
Staff Comment: Not applicable.
h. Whether adequate sewer and water facilities, and all other needed public services including transportation,
exist or can be provided to serve the uses that would be permitted on the property if it were reclassified;
Staff Comment: As discussed previously, adequate facilities and services are available to serve anticipated
uses.
i.

The general amount of vacant land that currently has the same zoning classification proposed for the
subject property, particularly in the vicinity of the subject property, and any special circumstances that
make a substantial part of such vacant land available or not available for development;
Staff Comment: Most SR residential parcels in the vicinity are developed. There are smaller undeveloped
lots in subdivisions to the east. Development of these parcels are subject to market demand for small-lot
residential development in a subdivision versus private development along paved vehicular corridors.

j.

The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff Comment: Staff recommends approval of the application as proposed.

k. Whether the proposed amendment would be in conformance to and further enhance the implementation
of the Comprehensive Plan;
Staff Comment: The proposed amendment is in conformance with the implementation of the
Comprehensive Plan.
l.

Whether the relative gain to the public health, safety, and general welfare outweighs the hardship imposed
upon the applicant by not upgrading the value of the property by such a reclassification; and,
Staff Comment: The gain to public health, safety and general welfare does not outweigh the hardship
imposed by not upgrading the value of the property by the rezoning. The creation of smaller lots along the
existing County road system near a commuter corridor contributes to public health, safety and welfare.

m. Such other factors as may be relevant from the facts and evidence presented in the application.
Staff Comment: None.
STAFF ANALYSIS – FINAL PLAT APPLICATION:
Staff finds that the Final Plat is in substantial compliance with the Preliminary Plat. Existing streets are consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan and with applicable street standards of the Jefferson County Subdivision Regulations,
and the ROW dedication is consistent with plans and regulations. All applicable lot standards are met and all lots
include the prescribed utility easements. No public improvements are proposed.
No written communications with a position on this application were received at time of packet distribution.
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ATTACHMENTS:
A. Preliminary Plat
B. Final Plat
C. Google images
D. Notification map and letter
E. Zoning map
F. Floodplain map
G. Rural Water District letter
H. Jefferson County Health Department letter
I. Road and Bridge Department letter
ACTION:
After holding the required public hearing, the Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of
the following:
1. Approve the applications based on the findings of the staff report.
2. Approve the applications with conditions or stated modifications to the Plat as deemed necessary to carry
out the spirit and intent of the applicable regulations.
3. Deny the applications with specific findings of fact.
4. Continue the applications to allow further analysis.
EFFECT OF DECISION:
The proposed Rezoning, if approved by the County Commission, shall become effective upon publication of the
adopting resolution. The transfer or sale of any tract or parcel of land located in a plat approved by the County
Commission that has not been recorded with the Register of Deeds is prohibited. The final plat shall be recorded
and filed with the Register of Deeds of Jefferson County, Kansas after approval of the final plat by the County
Commission as required by State law. No zoning certificate, building permit, on-site wastewater permit or other
similar permit shall be issued until the proposed subdivision has been approved and recorded.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the applications as proposed.
Recommended motion:
After review of application Z2021-06, a Zoning District Amendment (Rezoning) application, and PR2021-02, a Final
Plat application, for a 4-lot subdivision (Hunt’s Acres) located on the northeast corner of 74th St and West Lake Rd,
and staff report dated June 28, 2021, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the applications as
proposed, and recommends the Governing Body accept dedication of rights-of-way and easements.
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View of west portion of property along West Lake Rd, facing south, ridge in background.
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View of the western edge of the property at the intersection of West Lake Rd and 74th St.
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View of the western portion of the property facing north.
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View of the developed portion of the property from the west.
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Developed portion of the property looking north.
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View of the eastern portion of the property facing east.
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View of the eastern portion of the property from the east, facing west.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300JeffersonSt Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P.O- BOX 628 Phone: (785) 403-0000
www.jfcountyks.com/olannin6andzoning Oskaloosa, KS 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Date of Notice: 05/25/2021
Dear Property Owner:
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, June 28th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via
Zoom Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety. All reports will
be posted online at https://www.ifcountyks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning Commission) no
later than Wednesday, June 23rd.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward(%ifcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone - and only
such persons - to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are
strongly recommended at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, June 28th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward(%ifcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
PR2021-02 and Z2021-06: A request to consider the final plat of the Hunt's Acres Subdivision. A 4-lot
subdivision generally located at the NE comer of 74 St and West Lake Rd, where the smallest lot is 3.76 acres
+/-. Also, a request to rezone all lots from Rural Residential to Suburban Residential. This request is brought by
owner William K Hunt located at 6922 74th St, Meriden, KS 66512.
You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article
30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to "...all owners of record of
lands located within at least 1,000 feet of the area proposed to be altered...."
Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.

/

T,

,"^

Kel^ Drake Woodward, AICP Erin George
Coifamunity Development Director Planner II
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BUIU)ING sermcK UNFS
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UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE
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OWNER'S DEED, DOC. N0.2009R1369

Current Building or Setback line distances shall bf ascertainad
from the Jefferson Co, Planning and Zoning Dep(. prior (o any
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HUNT'S ACRES

AMERICAN SURVEYING

PROPERTl' LOCATION MAP

Steve Tufte and Garret Tufte
75J? Hwy 59, Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066
7B5-231-B090

A SUBDIVISION IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 10 SOUTH,
RANGE 17 EAST OF THE SIXTH PM., JEFFERSON COUNTY, KANSAS.

FINAL PLAT
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wMoh shall bf known as Bunt's Aoraa. a su&cHvtoion
in AffTxm County, jrcmsaa.

A tract of land located in the Northwest Quarter ot'Scction 14, Township 10 South. Range HEastof
the Sixth P.M.. Jefl'erson County, Kansas, described as follows: Beginning at the Souihwcst corner of
said Northwest Quarter; thence N02°08'34"W assumed bearing, along the West line of said
Northwest Quarter 391.60 feet; thence N88°2S'37"E 2225.38 feet; thence S02°12'26"E 391.62 feet to
the South line of said Northwest Quarter; thence S88°25'39"W along said South line 2225.82 feet to
the Point of Beginning, contauling 20.01 acres, more or less. Subject to easements of record and
public road rights~of-way.

NOTE FORMERLY DESCRIBED IN DOC. NO. 2009R1369
REFERENCE DOCUMENTS
ROUM CAWOUC WCHDIOCESE SUBD..

MTED 10/Z4/2001, PLAT BOOK 9. PAGE 22

OWNER'S DEED: RECORDED AS DOC. HO. 2009R13S9
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Page 78 of 164
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SERVICE PHONES

01-FICE PHONE

/-785-484-252 ft or
1-785-221-02!} I

1-785-945-3245
Ftix- 78 5-945-6269
PaulHcinenAssoc^gmail.com

JEFFERSON COUNTY

Rural Water District No. 3
P.O. BOX 129

VALLEY FALLS, KANSAS 66088

April 29, 2021

Steve Tufte
Meriden.Ks 66512

RE: Water Meters/Service A vail ability
3 Lots on Subdivision of
Hunt's Acres

Jefferson County, Meriden, Kansas 66512

Dear Sir or Madam:
We have meters available to service the 3 lots.
The cost is Three Thousand ($3,010.00) dollars and is payable prior to a water meter being
set, effective. This cost includes the meter, meter pit, meter lid, installation. $1,000.00
additional charge - if road bore is involved and additional charges if the bore is through rock
or has line extension involved with the setting of the meter.
Excerpt from the By-Laws and Rules & Regulations: pages 3, 4 & 15.
Benefit Units: Section 5. Each Benefit Unit shall entitle the owner to, not to exceed,
one line from the District's water system. Each line shall serve, not to exceed, one residence

or business establishment together with the necessary and usual out-buildings.
Meters: Meters will be furnished, installed, owned, inspected, tested and kept in
proper operating condition by the District, without cost to the consumer.
Meter Location: Meters shall be set in an accessible place on the outside of buildings
except where otherwise directed by the District. Meters set outside of a building shall be
placed in a meter box furnished and installed by the District.
The water line from the Benefit Unit to the house is the owners' responsibility.
If you have any questions, feel free to contact Paul Heinen or Dianne Heinen at 785-9453245.
Sincerely,
Dianne Heinen, Clerk
P.HUdb
CC: fiic
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1212 Walnut Street
Oskatoosa, KS 66066-4200
(785) 403-0025
Public Health Fax
(785)863-2652

efferson

HEALTH DEPARTMENT Home Health.&HO;plceFax
HOME HEALTH S HOSPIC E ,.ff..onco^8y5>ie8a6,3h3c3o2n3

May 3, 2021

American Surveying
Steve Tufte
7531 U.S.59Hwy
Oskaloosa, KS 66066
RE: Environmental Consult

William Hunt
6922 - 74th St.
Meriden,KS 66512 (14-10-17)
The Jefferson County Health Department received a request for an Environmental Consult to
split the above reference property into four lots.
Lot 1 will consist of 4.00 acres and Lot 3 will consists of 3.76 acres. The soil on these lots is of
the Morrill Series. Morrill soils are well drained, and permeability is moderately slow. There
should be no problem installing a wastewater system on either of these lots.
Lot 2 will consist of 8.49 acres. There is an existing house with a lagoon as the wastewater
system. The lagoon will meet all the required setbacks from the property lines.
Lot 4 will consist of 3.76 acres. The soil on this lot is of the Pawnee Soils. Pawnee soils are well
drained, and permeability is slow. There should be no problem installing a wastewater system on
this lot.
If you have further questions, please feel free to contact me.
Sincerely,

t^
Joh^i Heston, Environmental Specialist
Jefferson County Health Department

JH:kh

MyFiles/Lctters/consult.ltr.wpd
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JEFFERSON COUNTY
ROAD DEPARTMENT
P.O. BOX 322

OSKALOOSA, KS 66066
PHONE (785)403-0279
FAX (785)863-3026

BEN DOMANN
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
May 12,2021

American Surveying

7531 US 59 Hwy
Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Re: 044-176-1 4-0-00-00-005.00-0

S14,T10,R17,Acresl5.88
Hunt's Acres Split
Dear Mr. Tufte:

After reviewing the above, my findings are:
1. The existing entrances at 6922 74l on the N side of 74th meets current Road Dept.
Standards of 30' width for a residential entrance.
2. The existing field entrance on the N side of 74th approx. 286ft W of 6922 74th St
meets current Road Dept. Standards of 30' width for a residential entrance.
3. The existing field entrance on the N side of 74th approx. 198ft E of 7160 74th meets
current Road Dept. Standards of 30' width for a residential entrance.
4. It is possible for at least one entrance on each lot along 74th and West Lake Rd but
any future entrance must be reviewed before installation due to the limited sight
distance (i.e. curves, hills) and materials needed.

If you have any further questions, please call.

p-

ill Hoffman

Superintendent
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING III

PR2021-03 and Z2021-07: A request to consider the final plat of the Cannon Ridge Subdivision. A 2-lot subdivision
generally located on the north side of 35th St between US-59 Hwy and Pawnee Rd, where the smallest lot is 4.15
acres +/-. Also, a request to rezone Lot 1 from Rural Residential to Suburban Residential. This request is brought by
owner Jacob Cannon located at 14630 35th St, Perry, KS 66073
Date of Application: 05/18/2021
Type of Request: Rezoning and Final Plat
Owner/Applicant: Jacob Cannon
Address: 14630 35th St, Perry KS 66073
General Location:
North side of 35th St between US-59 Hwy and Pawnee Rd
CAMA #:
Existing Zoning:

Existing Land Uses:
Lot Size:
Notification:
Floodplain:
Roads Report:
Water:
Wastewater:
Signage:
Prior
Application/History:

044-222-09-0-00-00-011.01-0
Site:
RR
North: RR
East:
AG, RR
South: AG
West: AG, SR
Site:
Farm homesite
North: Residential
East:
Farm homesites, Ag, Residential
South: Agricultural, Farm homesite
West: Residential
19.59 acres
Published and notified as required
None
See attached letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge
See attached letter from Rural Water District 7
See attached letter from the Jefferson County Health Department
None
None

EXISTING CONDITIONS:
The subject property is a long, narrow, irregular parcel with a great deal of frontage on 35th St. There is an existing
home and metal accessory building on the parcel. The lot has woods, fields, and a small pond.
APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
The plat divides the current lot into a two-lot subdivision, with proposed Lot 1 containing approximately 4.15 acres
and proposed lot two containing approximately 18.1 acres. The rezoning application is to rezone proposed Lot 1
from Rural Residential to Suburban Residential, and retain the Rural Residential zoning on proposed Lot 2.
CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
The approximately 20-acre property is completely within the “Ag Enhancement” area. It does not contain any areas
of “Known Sensitive Habitat”. The property is on the edge of the view shed that is centered on US 59 Hwy as
indicated in the Comprehensive Plan. The existing home is over a half mile from US 59, and the planned new home
will be approximately one-half mile from US 59. The property is located across East Stone House Creek, and
buffered by woodlands and intervening properties as viewed from the highway, so it is not anticipated that there
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will be a detrimental impact on the view shed. 35th Street is indicated as a rural minor collector graded gravel road
on the Jefferson County Major Thoroughfare Plan. This equates to a total of 80’ of ROW per the Subdivision
Regulations (40’ on each side). The plat includes a total of 40’ of ROW dedication (one side) and thus is consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan and regulations.
INFRASTRUCTURE, TRAFFIC AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
The proposed development utilizes existing 35th Street for access to both lots. The Road and Bridge Department
indicates that the entrance for the current home on Lot 2 meets standards and future entrances are possible
pending review. The plat provides that Lot 2 will be accessed via an easement over Lot 1 (in the location of the
current driveway). If a separate driveway was created for Lot 2, the current property address would change.
Water for the additional lot will be supplied by Rural Water District #7 (see attached letter). Wastewater will be
managed per private septic systems. Per the Health Department letter attached, Lot 1 has some challenges related
to soil types for conventional systems, and some recommendations are offered depending on location of a new
residence. Per the Health Department, the existing system on Lot 2 will meet required setbacks from the new
property lines, however they did not evaluate the condition of the current wastewater system. Utility easements
are provided as consistent with applicable regulations.
STAFF ANALYSIS – REZONING APPLICATION:
ARTICLE 30 REZONING FACTORS:
a. Whether the change in classification would be consistent with the intent and purpose of these regulations;
Staff Comment: The change in classification is consistent with the intent and purpose of the regulations as
follows: Lot 1 is proposed for Suburban Residential zoning which is consistent with lot size and intent for
use; Lot 2 as newly reconfigured will retain the Rural Residential zoning as consistent with lot size and intent
for use.
b. The character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood and its effect on the proposed change;
Staff Comment: 35th Street east of US 59 is bounded by many smaller parcels ranging from 3 – 15 acres on
the approach to this parcel and north of this parcel. To the south are larger parcels 30-75 acres in size. This
is an area that already contains a diversity of residential parcel sizes. This proposal is consistent with the
character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood. No detrimental impact is anticipated.
c. Whether the proposed amendment is made necessary because of changed or changing conditions in the
area affected, and if so, the nature of such changed or changing conditions;
Staff Comment: The proposed amendment is necessary to achieve the applicant’s goals for the property,
but is also consistent with changing conditions supporting more dense development near commuter
corridors. This development is consistent with emerging development patterns.
d. The current zoning and uses of nearby properties, and the effect on existing nearby land uses upon such a
change in classification;
Staff Comment: The change in classification is not expected to have a detrimental impact on adjacent
agricultural and residential land uses. A diverse range of residential districts and agricultural uses exist in
the area currently.
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e. Whether every use that would be permitted on the property as reclassified would be compatible with the
uses permitted on other property in the immediate vicinity;
Staff Comment: Every permitted use would be compatible with and similar to adjacent properties.
f.

The suitability of the applicant’s property for the uses to which it has been restricted;
Staff Comment: The subject property is suitable for the residential uses to which it has been restricted, and
is also suitable for those same residential uses that are permitted in the proposed district, provided that an
appropriate wastewater management system can be installed at time of building permit application for a
new residence on Lot 1.

g. The length of time the subject property has remained vacant or undeveloped as zoned; provided, the use
of land for agricultural purposes shall be considered as viable use of the land and not be considered as
allowing the land to be vacant or undeveloped;
Staff Comment: Not applicable.
h. Whether adequate sewer and water facilities, and all other needed public services including transportation,
exist or can be provided to serve the uses that would be permitted on the property if it were reclassified;
Staff Comment: As discussed previously, adequate facilities and services are available or can be made
available to serve anticipated uses.
i.

The general amount of vacant land that currently has the same zoning classification proposed for the
subject property, particularly in the vicinity of the subject property, and any special circumstances that
make a substantial part of such vacant land available or not available for development;
Staff Comment: Most smaller residential parcels in the vicinity are developed. Housing is currently in high
demand in most areas of the Country.

j.

The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff Comment: Staff recommends approval of the application as proposed.

k. Whether the proposed amendment would be in conformance to and further enhance the implementation
of the Comprehensive Plan;
Staff Comment: The proposed amendment is in conformance with the implementation of the
Comprehensive Plan.
l.

Whether the relative gain to the public health, safety, and general welfare outweighs the hardship imposed
upon the applicant by not upgrading the value of the property by such a reclassification; and,
Staff Comment: The gain to public health, safety and general welfare does not outweigh the hardship
imposed by not upgrading the value of the property by the rezoning. The creation of smaller lots along the
existing County road system near a commuter corridor contributes to public health, safety and welfare.

m. Such other factors as may be relevant from the facts and evidence presented in the application.
Staff Comment: None.
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STAFF ANALYSIS – FINAL PLAT APPLICATION:
Staff finds that the Final Plat is in substantial compliance with the Preliminary Plat. Existing streets are consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan and with applicable street standards of the Jefferson County Subdivision Regulations,
and the ROW dedication is consistent with plans and regulations. All applicable lot standards are met and all lots
include the prescribed utility easements. No public improvements are proposed.
No written communications with a position on this application were received at time of packet distribution.
ATTACHMENTS:
A. Preliminary Plat
B. Final Plat
C. Notification map and letter
D. Zoning map
E. Floodplain map
F. AG Enhancement Map
G. Rural Water District letter
H. Jefferson County Health Department letter
I. Road and Bridge Department letter
ACTION:
After holding the required public hearing, the Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of
the following:
1. Approve the applications based on the findings of the staff report.
2. Approve the applications with conditions or stated modifications to the Plat as deemed necessary to carry
out the spirit and intent of the applicable regulations.
3. Deny the applications with specific findings of fact.
4. Continue the applications to allow further analysis.
EFFECT OF DECISION:
The proposed Rezoning, if approved by the County Commission, shall become effective upon publication of the
adopting resolution. The transfer or sale of any tract or parcel of land located in a plat approved by the County
Commission that has not been recorded with the Register of Deeds is prohibited. The final plat shall be recorded
and filed with the Register of Deeds of Jefferson County, Kansas after approval of the final plat by the County
Commission as required by State law. No zoning certificate, building permit, on-site wastewater permit or other
similar permit shall be issued until the proposed subdivision has been approved and recorded.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the applications as proposed.
Recommended motion:
After review of application Z2021-07, a Zoning District Amendment (Rezoning) application, and PR2021-03, a Final
Plat application, for a 2-lot subdivision (Cannon Ridge) located on the north side of 35th St between US-59 Hwy and
Pawnee Rd, and staff report dated June 28, 2021, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the
applications as proposed, and recommends the Governing Body accept dedication of rights-of-way and easements.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300 Jefferson St Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P.O. BOX 628 Phone: (785) 403-0000
www.jfcountvks.com/planningandzoninR Oskaloosa/ KS 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Date of Notice: 05/25/2021
Dear Property Owner:
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, June 28th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via
Zoom Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety. All reports will
be posted online at https://www.ifcountyks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning Commission) no
later than Wednesday, June 23rd.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward@ifcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone - and only
such persons - to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are
strongly recommended at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, June 28th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward(%ifcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
PR2021-03 and Z2021-07: A request to consider the final plat of the Cannon Ridge Subdivision. A 2-lot
subdivision generally located on the north side of 35th St between US-59 Hwy and Pawnee Rd, where the smallest
lot is 4.15 acres +/-. Also, a request to rezone Lot 1 from Rural Residential to Suburban Residential. This request
is brought by owner Jacob Cannon located at 14630 35th St, Perry, KS 66073.
You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article
30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to "...all owners of record of
lands located within at least 1,000 feet of the area proposed to be altered...."
Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.

)^^
Woodward, AICP Erin George
ity Development Director Planner II
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1212 Walnut Street
Oskaloosa, KS 66066-4200

efferson
yC

0

U

(785) 403-0025

N

TY

Public Health Fax

(785)8632652

HEALTH DEPARTMENT Home Health&^HO^CLFa:
HOME HEALTH & HOSPICE ]effersoncount"yhea^7m

May 13,2021

American Surveying
Steve Tufte
7531 U.S.59Hwy
Oskaloosa,KS 66066
RE: Environmental Consult
Jacob Cannon
14630-35th St.
Perry, KS 66073 (09-11-19)
The Jefferson County Health Department received a request for an Environmental Consult to
split the above referenced property into two lots.
Lot 1 will consist of 4.15 acres. Soils on this lot are of the Vinland and Martin Series. The
Vinland soils are located on the south 2/3rds of the lot. Vinland soils are formed in material
weathered from silty shale. A conventional system, such as a septic tank and lateral field, cannot
be placed in these soils. The north 1,3rd of the lot is of the Martin Series. Martin soils are well
drained, and permeability is slow. If a house is placed south on the lot in the rocks, then a pump
can be installed to direct the wastewater uphill to the north.
Lot 2 will consist of 18.10 acres. There is an existing house and wastewater system on this lot.
The existing wastewater system will meet all the required setbacks from property lines. A site
visit was not complete to determine the condition of the wastewater system.
If you have further questions, please feel free to contact me.
Si^erely,

Jol^i Heston, Environmental Specialist
Jefferson County Health Department

JH:kh

M\ Filcs/Letters/consulLllr.wpd
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vv\
ROAD DEPARTMENT
P.O. BOX 322

OSKALOOSA, KS 66066
PHONE (785)403-0279
FAX (785) 863-3026

BEN DOMANN
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
May 18,2021

American Surveying

7531 US 59 Hwy
Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Re: 044-222-09-0-00-00-011.01-0

S09, TH, R19, Acres: Lot 1-4.15, Lot 2-18.1
Jacob Cannon - Cannon Ridge
Dear Mr. Tufte:
After reviewing the above, my findings are:
1. The existing entrance at 14630 35th St on the North side of 35th meets current Road
Dept. Standards of 30' width for a residential entrance.
2. The existing field entrance on the N side of 35th approx. 1058ft E of 14603 35th St
meets current Road Dept. Standards of 30' width.
3. It is possible for other entrances along 35th St but any future entrance must be
reviewed before installation due to the limited sight distance (i.e. curves, hills) and
materials needed.
4. Due to the location of the driveway for 14630 35th St and the location of the Lot Split,
an access easement will be required for Lot 2 if Lot 1 is sold to a different owner. If
the owner at 14630 35th St chooses to change the location of their entrance within Lot
2, it may cause a change in their address.

If you have any further questions, please call.

^Ptiil Hoffman
Superintendent
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING IV

DP2021-02: A request to consider an amended Development Plan for planned improvements at an existing
convenience store and storage facility permitted as conditional use CU1995-10. This request is on property located
at 4538 K-237 Hwy, Ozawkie, KS 66070. This request is brought by agents Derek and Shelly Jones for owner Jones
Investments, LLC, all of 11875 Douglas Rd, Everest, KS 66424.
Date of Application: 5/20/2021
Type of Request: Amended Development Plan for CU1995-10
Owner/Applicant: Jones Investments LLC, Address: 4538 K-237 Hwy, Ozawkie, KS 66070
Derek and Shelly Jones
General Location:
North side of K-237 Hwy between 50th St to the north and 46th St to the south
CAMA #:
Existing Zoning:

Existing Land Uses:
Lot Size:
Notification:
Floodplain:
Roads Report:
Water:
Wastewater:
Signage:
Prior
Application/History:
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044-241-02-0-00-00-001.01-0
Site:
Rural Residential (RR)
North: US Army Corp of Engineers
East:
USACE-GOV and AG
(USACE-GOV)
South: RR
West: AG
Site:
Commercial
North: Recreational
East:
Recreational and agricultural
South: Farm homesite and residential
West: Agricultural
13.42 acres
Published and notified as required
None
See attached Letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge regarding proposed
entrance on 46th St and KDOT communications
See attached letter from R.W.D. No. 1
See attached letter from the Jefferson County Health Department
1. A Conditional Use Permit was approved in 1995 for the existing storage business
(CU1995-10). The Development Plan was for a 36’ x 50’ convenience store with
gas pumps, 200’ x 300’ fenced area for outdoor storage, 60’ x 120’ building for
indoor storage, and access via a driveway on K-237 Highway. The plan was
approved by the County Commission on July 17, 1995, with three conditions: 1)
the storage facility would be fenced with screening in front of fence; 2) provide
proof of adequate water; and 3) provide a plat and Development plan of the
property.
2. The plat for the property was recorded on March 19, 1996 and includes a 50’
setback for buildings on all perimeter boundary lines. A building permit was
also issued that same day.
3. On July 13, 1998 the Board of County Commissioners approved a revision to
CU1995-10 to allow four additional buildings for indoor storage and to increase
the size of the convenience store and fenced outdoor storage area. They
rescinded the condition for screening in front of the fence, and added a
condition that the property would be reviewed and inspected in two years.

A building permit for the second storage building was issued in July of 1998.
In 2003 and 2004, special event permits were issued for the property for 3 - 4
months each year to host events such as a barbeque and beer garden, car
exhibition, farmers market, boat and RV exhibition, and cook off competition. At
this time a cistern was used as water supply.
6. A sign permit was issued in 2008.
7. DP2015-05, a Development Plan Amendment, was approved on August 17, 2015
to allow additional buildings (four phases each approximately 50’ x 120’) and
revise the north (rear) setback to be 20’. The development plan shows two
existing indoor storage buildings, the existing convenience store and fuel
stations and fuel tanks and one proposed 4-phase building on the north (rear)
portion of the property with the amended 20’ rear setback. The amendment
was approved with one condition – that the existing dilapidated sign be
removed or resurfaced and the temporary signage in the ROW removed. The
temporary signage was removed. The long-standing pole sign is still there and
has not yet had content replaced. It is in good condition, well-maintained, and
operational (electricity).
4.
5.

EXISTING CONDITIONS:
Currently the site includes the convenience store/gas station building, fuel tanks, septic system, and four storage
buildings within a fenced area that is used for outdoor boat and RV storage. This includes the existing buildings at
time of application for DP2015-05, plus two new buildings that are a total of approximately 16,480 s.f. (leaving a
remainder of approximately 7,520 s.f. approved building coverage that has not been constructed per the most
recent approved development plan). The newest buildings are not placed exactly as shown on the most recently
approved development plan. The property has trees on the northeast and northwest portions and along the north
and east boundaries.
APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
Anything that is not a minor adjustment to an approved Development Plan is to be submitted to and approved by
the Planning Commission and Governing Body. Section 16-105 states that “At no time shall the Conditional Use
previously approved be subject to disapproval. The only issue in said review shall be the requested revisions to the
previously approved Development Plan.” The Planning Commission is being asked to render a recommendation
regarding approval of an amended Development Plan for this existing Conditional Use.
This application does not include an increase to the size of the parcel that is subject to the Conditional Use. This
application is to construct three new indoor storage buildings in an area of the site not formerly indicated for
development (east of the convenience store). One building is planned to be 43’ x 121’ as stated in the narrative
(shown as 40’ x 120’ or 4,800 s.f. on the development plan), and the other is planned to be 83’ x 121’ as stated in
the narrative (shown as 80’ x 120’ or 9,600 s.f. on the development plan). Size is not specified on the other building
at this time, but it looks like it is approximately 40’ x 120’ as well. So this would be a request for approximately
19,200 s.f. of additional building coverage on a portion of the property that was previously open space.
The Development Plan shows the setback for the buildings from the east property line as 46.4’. The applicant is
requesting a minimum 20’ side setback which encroaches on the 50’ setback as established on the plat. The RR
District requires a minimum of 20’ side setback, so this is consistent with current regulations. The modified setback
should be clarified as a condition of approval.
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A campground is mentioned in the narrative but is not included on the Development Plan. It is staff’s position that
a campground would be a new use of the property, and is therefore not included in this amended Development
Plan request. Such request would be an amendment of the original Conditional Use Permit CU1995-10 that was for
an indoor/outdoor storage facility and convenience store/gas station. See the recommended condition of approval
that is intended to clarify that this application does not include consideration of a campground use or facility.
Zoning Summary:
Article 16 of the Zoning Regulations provide guidance for approval of Development Plans. The regulations state that
prescribed regulations pertaining to height, open space, setbacks, parking, loading and signs may be adjusted or
modified so that the property in question may be developed in a reasonable manner and, at the same time, will not
be detrimental to the public welfare and interests of the community, but in keeping with the general intent and
spirit of these regulations. These adjustments or modifications may be made as an amendment to a previously
approved Development Plan.
Per Section 16-104, in the process of reviewing any Development Plan, the Planning Commission and/or Governing
Body may provide approval of the Development Plan conditioned upon certain limitations or restrictions deemed
necessary to protect the public interest and surrounding properties, including, if any, the following:
1. Limitations on the type, illumination and appearance of any signs or advertising structures.
2. Direction and location of outdoor lighting.
3. Arrangement and location of off-street parking and off-street loading spaces.
4. The type of paving, landscaping, fencing, screening and other such features.
5. Limitations on structural alterations to existing buildings.
6. Prohibition of use or construction of any structure to be used for a single-family dwelling, including a
manufactured home.
7. Plans for control or elimination of smoke, dust, gas, noise or vibration caused by the proposed use.
8. Waiver of any standards, requirements or depiction of information required by this Article when requested
by the applicant and shown to be unnecessary as applied to the specific case in question.
9. Such other conditions and/or limitations that are deemed necessary.
Staff recommendations for these elements are presented in the staff analysis section of this report.
CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
This analysis relates to whether the amended development plan associated with this conditional use is consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan. The subject parcel is not within an Agricultural Enhancement area or designated
commercial/industrial area. It does not contain any areas of known sensitive habitat or natural features/cultural
attributes per the Comprehensive Plan. The Land Evaluation and Site Assessment System (LESA) is not applicable at
this time as it is intended to guide decisions that allow the conversion of farmland to non-agricultural uses.
Chapter 3 of the Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan includes a goal to encourage continued commercial
development located along major highways. The conditional use process is applicable for commercial development
outside the areas designated for commercial industrial areas in the Comprehensive Plan. This successful business is
well-located to serve lake-related and recreational storage demand.

Page 102 of 164

INFRASTRUCTURE AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
The Conditional Use is accessed via an existing driveway on K-237. KDOT has indicated that the proposed
improvements to add storage capacity at this location will not have a detrimental impact on this existing access
point. The Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department indicates that the informal field entrance off 46th St does
not meet standards for a commercial entrance and will require culvert extensions. This is a recommended
condition of approval since the development plan indicates utilization of this access point. From my June 18 site
visit, and information offered by the applicant, I do believe these improvements have already been contracted and
excavation may have begun, but the recommended condition of approval will just help give assurance on this point.
The Jefferson County Health Department evaluated a plan for two new buildings on the east side of the property
that would not include a water or wastewater systems. The Health Department indicates that if the buildings are
constructed at the location indicated, they will meet required setbacks from the existing wastewater system. They
also indicated that if another wastewater system is needed in the future, space for this system could be a concern.
Although the Health Department did not address the future phase building A, I believe it has an even greater setback
from the current septic system as indicated by the Health Department diagram, so this should not be a problem,
although I have asked the applicant to indicate the location of the existing septic system on the development plan.
This is a recommended condition of approval and a requirement for development plans (to show existing
wastewater systems).
STAFF ANALYSIS - APPLICATION:
All required application materials have been received, however the Development Plan is missing some required
information. Other information that is not currently shown on the development plan, but that is required, includes
proposed elevation contours, new vehicular circulation patterns including surface materials for driveways and
parking areas, areas with trees to either be removed or retained, outdoor lighting, and drainage details. I visited
the site on June 18, and discussed the planned improvements with the applicant, and viewed the location for the
new buildings. I do not have concerns about these improvements. I have offered recommended conditions of
approval for these elements to be clarified on the development plans, however.
The applicable performance standards for the RR district and for Conditional Uses have been met, except we need
clarification that any new outdoor lighting will be controlled or hooded so that light is directed away from any
adjoining residentially zoned property or public streets (see recommended condition of approval).
Signs: Any new signs will need a separate permit and will be expected to comply with regulations. No additional
signs have been requested at this time. The 2015 Development Plan amendment was approved with a condition of
approval that, “the existing dilapidated sign be removed or resurfaced and the temporary signage in the ROW
removed”. The supposedly dilapidated pole sign that was to be removed is shown in my site visit photos. This sign
is in good repair and condition, and just needs replacement face. I understand the electrical is operational. I
recommend keeping this sign structure in place to be used for the convenience store if it is reopened. This is a
recommended condition of approval. There are no temporary signs currently.
Parking: Section 18-105 Performance Standards for parking require that all off-street parking spaces and their
access drives required for all commercial uses shall be paved if the adjoining road is also paved. The existing drive
off K-237 and connected parking areas are paved. There are 16 parking spaces at the convenience store per the
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applicant, and space for four vehicles at the fuel pumps. Other vehicular circulation routes in the outdoor storage
areas are gravel or proposed to be gravel in addition to the gravel drive connecting to gravel road 46 th St. Staff
supports this plan for new gravel driveways and vehicular circulation areas attached to gravel road 46th Street.
ATTACHMENTS:
A. DP2021-02 Application, Development Plan and Applicant Statement of Intent
B. Application and approvals from Conditional Use CU1995-10 and DP2015-05
C. Notification map and letter
D. Zoning map
E. Floodplain map
F. Jefferson County Road and Bridge letter
G. KDOT communications
H. Jefferson County Health Department letter
I. Rural Water District No. 1 letter
ACTIONS:
The Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of the following:
1. Approve the amended Development Plan for CU1995-10 as proposed.
2. Approve the amended Development Plan for CU1995-10 with conditions or stated modifications to the
Development Plan as deemed necessary to carry out the spirit and intent of the applicable regulations.
3. Deny the amended development plan application for CU1995-10 with findings of fact.
4. Continue the application to allow further analysis.
EFFECT OF DECISION:
The applicant may proceed with construction based on the entire Development Plan, or may elect to develop the
property in successive phases. The applicant may submit the Development Plan separately for the first and each
successive phase of construction, or for all of the project with a depiction of the phasing sequence; however, all
Conditional Uses approved with a Development Plan shall have construction begun within one (1) year of said
approval by the Governing Body. The applicant may request a one (1) year extension of this time restriction by
submitting a request in writing to the Governing Body stating the reasons construction has not begun and at what
time construction is expected to begin. If the Governing Body agrees, the one (1) year extension may be granted
one time but shall not be granted for any longer period.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the amended Development Plan DP2021-02 for CU1995-10 for property located at
5991 17th St with recommended conditions as shown in the recommended motion.
Recommended motion:
After review of application DP2021-01, an amended Development Plan for CU2002-01 for property located at 4538
K-237 Hwy, Ozawkie, KS and staff report dated June 28, 2021, the Planning Commission recommends approval of
the application with the following conditions:
1. The Development Plan is approved with a minimum side setback of 20’, which is consistent with current
requirements for the RR District and reflects an amendment of the 50’ setback as established on the plat.
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2. It is hereby stated that this application for an amended development plan does not include consideration
or approval of a campground use or camping facility.
3. The 46th Street entrance will be improved to meet applicable standards for a commercial entrance as
determined by the Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department.
4. The Development Plan shall be amended to indicate the location of the existing wastewater management
system, and all improvements shall meet the required setback from this system as determined by the
Jefferson County Health Department.
5. The Development Plan shall be amended to illustrate proposed elevation contours and note approximate
finished floor elevations for the new buildings, illustrate new vehicular circulation patterns and describe
surface materials, indicate areas with trees to either be removed or retained, and note drainage patterns.
6. Any new outdoor lighting will be controlled or hooded so that light is directed away from any adjoining
residentially zoned property or public streets.
7. Allow the existing pole sign to remain and be reutilized for the business provided it is maintained in good,
operable condition.
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300JdrersonS{ (^|—») 3 E F IFIER^0 INI COUNTY Jefferson CounCy Courthouse

P.O. Dox 628 NS^^ COMMUNtTY DEVELOPMENT Phone: (785) 403-0000 Option 3
(Maloosa, KS 66066 ^&?< Planning and Zoning Division Toll Free: (84-1) 679-0748

APPLICATION FOR A REZONING REQUEST, CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT, AND/OR DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT
This form must be completed and filed at the Office of die Zoning Administrator in accordance with directions on the
accompanying instruction sheet. AN INCOMPLETE APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED
1, Name of ALL AppHcant(s)/ Owners) and/or Agent(s). (Use separate sheet if necessary)

AppUcant/ Owner: ,Tofl<<> "p*^^^?-^ ^-^C Agent: flrr</C t $/u//y J&A ^

Address: 11615 Oo^L Rd _ Address: M^ fc^L ^

k^A _k^ 6^lf ^,,,^ ' KH iW

City

State

Zip

City

State

Zip

Phone: ( 1^) 31^771^ _ Ptonc:(^5 ) V^Wt
Emai 1: ^fa!*»M< G Ukc ^cy ^r|-)yr»ce/<^> _ Emai 1: 5'^^^ fc» /^ ^ry A^--^f.<
2< The Applicant Kex'e&y reqaests:
d}ai5geof%)mng^]B^:j^'''''.^^ ' , :: : :. : 'to_

Q'A Conditional; ljse:fbr-the.fb!lowmg:: :
|tADevejtopmentPteAmendmeiU:for:the^fo

3, This property address is: WS K 'W ^/ t)z^^^ ^f
The property is legally described as (Lot and Block OR Metes and Bounds):

The general location is (use appropriate section):

A. At the CNW) (NE) (SW) (SE) comer of_and . _, or
(Strtct/Road) (SteceK'Road)

B. On the (N) (S) (E) (W) side of_between _and

(Sit<;w%Qa4) (StreA-'Road'j (Sirect/R&adt

4* Plcase^CtacIt a sfcantemeafr of proposed uses of t&& JNMdmgs^
Provide all aecessajrymfe Bevelopmeaf PIaBi per Section I6-3J03 a£ the Zonijag Itegulatioas. ^
I (We), the applicants), acknowledge receipt of the instruction sheet explaining the method of submitting this
application. I (^/e) realize that this appiicatioa cannot be processed unless it is completely filled in, submitted with
all reievantjMi^qr requested documentation and accompanied by the appropriate fee.

This application aadaH cottesgqmdmg documents were received at the office of the Zoning Admmlstrator on this ^0 day of
(r^J{ < ^^^ It has been examined! and found to be complete and accompanied by the required jdocuments.
Permit Type:.
Name:.

Updated: April 202)
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Fee: $ Z^)0 ; f Payment Method: /°^
Title: ^-2T 'i;::l:'^:l'''l::ll:l:l'l'':'^ 1:'11:;11;; checks ^?05'5

STATEMENT OF INTENT
The Harbor
4538 K-237 Hwy
Ozawkie, KS 66070

To Whom !t May Concern,

The intent of this Development Plan Amendment is to expand The Harbor storage facility to the
north of the convenience store. This phase will consist of two storage buildings. One measuring
43/xl21'/ and the second measuring 83'xl21\ Future growth to the north of this phase may
include additional storage buildings or a campground,
in addition to the buildings, we will be widening the existing entrance, off of 46th Street, to
provide our customers a 2fl<j commercial entrance. This will allow traffic to flow off of K-237
Hwy for access to the storage facilities and convenience store. There are plans to open the
convenience store and retail fuel sales in the spring of 2022 as a seasonai store. Estimated
days/hours of operation would be Thursday thru Sunday/ 7am to 7pm.
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SITE PLAN
LEGALDEBCRtPTtON;
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(INSTRUMENT #2013R3319)
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MONUMENT FOUND

"""" ""ROCK CREEK PARK

TRACT ONE {\), THE HARBOR, INC., A SUBDIViSION IN JEFFERSON COUNTY, KANSAS,
ACCORDING TO PLAT OF SURVEY DATED DECEMBER, 1995, FILED MARCH 19, 1996,
AND AS RECORDED PLAT BOOK 7. PAGE 19. SAID SUBDIVtSION BEING A PART OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4) OF SECTION TWO (82), TOWNSHIP ELEVEN SOUTH
(TH 5), RANGE SEVENTEEN EAST (R17E) OF THE 6TH PM., JEFFERSON COUNTY,

. LINE, NE1M, SEC. 2..T11S-R17E

KANSAS

TRACT 1

656,901 J1 SO R-. WL

NOTES,
1. TH IS SITE PLAN SS BASED ON KANSAS STATE PLANE COORDINATES SYSTEM,
NORTH ZOME (NAD83)(GRID), IN US SURVEY FEET. VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD88).
2. REFERENCE SURVEY: THE HARBOR, INC., PLAT BOOK 7. PAGE 19, BY LEDOIT A.

OR 15.08 ACRES M/L

L=23.08'M&P
R=8B1.47'

MEEKS, LS-73. DATED MARCH 19, 1996.

3. PROPOSED BUILDING LOCATION -PER CLIENTS REQUEST,
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i HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SITE PLAN WAS PERFORMED UNDER MY
DIRECT SUPERVISION ON MAY 20, 2021.
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MAY 20, 2021
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300JeffersonSt Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P.O. BOX 628 Phone: (785) 403-0000
www.jfcountvks.com/planningandzoning Oskaloosa, KS 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Date of Notice: 05/25/2021
Dear Property Owner:
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, June 28th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via
Zoom Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety. All reports will
be posted online at https://www.jfcountyks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning Commission) no
later than Wednesday, June 23rd.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward@ifcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone - and only
such persons - to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are
strongly recommended at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, June 28th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward@ifcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
DP2021-02: A request to consider an amended Development Plan for planned improvements at an existing
convenience store and storage facility permitted as conditional use CU 1995-10. This request is on property
located at 4538 K-237 Hwy, Ozawkie, KS 66070. This request is brought by agents Derek and Shelly Jones for
owner Jones Investments, LLC, all of 11875 Douglas Rd, Everest, KS 66424.
You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article
30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to "...all owners of record of
lands located within at least 1, 000 feet of the area proposed to be altered...."
Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.

Respectfuljyf ,

^^^/.

Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP Erin George
Community Development Director Planner II
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STATE MENTOFINTENT
The Harbor
4538K-237Hwy
Ozawkie, XS 65070

To Whom It May Concern,
The intent of this Development Plan Amendment is to expand The Harbor storage facility to the
norfh of the convenience store. This phase will consist of two storage buildings. One measuring
43'xl21/, and the second measuring 83'xi21\ Future growth to the northofthis phase may
include additional storage buildings or a campground.
In addition to the buildings, we will be widening the existing entrance, off of 46th Street, to
provide our customers a 2<ld commercial entrance- This will allow traffic to flow off of K-237
Hwy for access to the storage facilities and convenience store. There are plans to open the
convenience store and retail fuel sales in the spring of 2022 as a seasonal store. Estimated
days/hoyrs of operation would be Thursday thru Sunday, 7am to 7pm.
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SITE PLAN
COECONC.-
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5B-REBAR FOUND -

rN. LINE. NEW, SEC. 2-T11S-R17E

LEGALDESCRIPTIQN;
(INSTRUMENT #2013R3310)
TRACT ONE (1), THE HARBOR, INC., A SUBDIVISION IN JEFFERSON COUNTS, KANSAS,
ACCORDING TO PLAT OF SURVEY DATED DECEMBER, 1995, FILED MARCH 19, 1996,

AND AS RECORDED PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 19, SAID SUBDIVISION BEING A PART OF THE

NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4) OF SECTION TWO (S2), TOWNSHIP ELEVEN SOUTH
fTHS), RANGE SEVENTEEN EAST (R17E) OF THE 6TH P.M., JEFFERSON COUNTT,
KANSAS
NOTES:
1.

THIS SITE PLAN IS BASED ON KANSAS STATE PLANE COORDINATES SYSTEM,

NORTH ZONE (NAD83)(GRID). IN US SURVEY FEET. VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD88).

REFERENCE SURVEY: THE HARBOR, INC., PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 19, BY LEDOITA.
MEEKS, LS-73, DATED MARCH 19, 1996.
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P.O. BOX 322

OSKALOOSA, KS 66066
PHONE (785) 403-0279
FAX (785) 863-3026

May 18,2021

Derek Jones

11875 Douglas Rd
Everest, K.S 66424
785-313-7778
storage@lakeperryharbor.com
Re: 044-241 -02-0-00-00-001.01-0

S02, TH, R17, Acres 13.42

Dear Mr. Jones:

After reviewing the above, my findings are:
1. The field entrance for your property on the West side of 46th St approx. 374ft North
ofK237Hwy is currently a 15' x 30'culvert. To meet Road Dept Standards for a
commercial entrance, it will require a 15" x 10' metal con'ugated extension.

The landowner will need to provide all first materials for installation.
If you would like to proceed with the entrance, please call the office to obtain a work
order and advise information about the required supplies.

Phil Hoffman
Road Superintendent
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Erin George
From: Thomas Trull [KDOT] <Thomas.Trull@ks.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 1:05 PM
To: Erin George
Cc: The Harbor

Subject: Conditional Use Permit for Derek Jones at 4538 K-237 Hwy in Jefferson County

Erin,

I spoke with Derek Jones on Monday 5-22-2021 about adding additional buildings on the property for storage use.
The additional capacity at this location does not have a detrimental impact on the existing access for the property.
Please accept this as an 'approval' from KDOT for a review of the existing entrance to accommodate Mr. Jones'
proposed improvements.

Thanks
Thomas Trull: E.T. Senior

Area Four Utility Coordinator
101 SW Gage Blvd
Topeka, KS 66606
Phone: (785) 296-2068
Cell Phone : (785) 393-2231
Email Thomas.Trull@ks.gov
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1212 Walnut Street
Oskaloosa, KS 66066-4200
(785) 403-0025
Public Health Fax
(785) 863-2652
Home Health & Hospice Fax
(785) 863-3323
jeffersoncountyhealth.com

r':.efferson
\(_t~JC O U N T Y
HEALTH DEPARTMENT
HOME HEALTH & HOSPICE

DATE:

May 20, 2021

TO:

Jefferson County Planning & Zoning

FROM:

John Heston, Environmental Specialist
Jefferson County Health Department

RE:

Jones Investments LLC
The Habor Storage
4538 - 237 Hwy
Ozawkie, KS 66070 (02-11-17)

s l{

The Jefferson County Health Department received a request for an Amendment to the
Developmental Plan at the above referenced property. Per the owner two new buildings will be
built on the east side of the property. Per the owner there will be no water source to these
buildings, so no concerns for wastewater. If both building are constructed where indicated, they
will meet all the required setbacks from the existing wastewater system.
The current wastewater system on this property was installed in 1996, and approved by the
Jefferson County Health Department, for the convenience store, and was sized to accommodate
the business potential.
Any future building on this property needs to meet the required setbacks from the current
wastewater system. Should a wastewater system be needed in the future a permit application
must be obtained. Space for an additional wastewater system could be a concern.
Cc: Derek Jones
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STATEMENT OF INTENT
The Harbor
4538 K-237 Hwy
Ozawkie, KS 66070

To Whom It May Concern,
The intent of this Development Plan Amendment is to expand The Harbor storage faci lity to the
north of the convenience store. This phase will consist of two storage buildings. One measuring
43'xl21', and the second measuring 83'x121'. Future growth to the north of this phase may
include additional storage buildings or a campground.
In addition to the buildings, we will be widening the existing entrance, off of 46 th Street, to
provide our customers a 2nd commercial entrance. This will allow traffic to flow off of K-237
Hwy for access to the storage facilities and convenience store. There are plans to open the
convenience store and retail fuel sales in the future .
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
(INSTRUMENT #2013R331 0)
TRACT ONE (1), THE HARBOR, INC., A SUBDIVISION IN JEFFERSON COUNTY, KANSAS,
ACCORDING ro PLAT OF SURVEY DATED DECE MBER. 1995. FILED MARCH 19, 1996.
AND AS RECORDED PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 19, SAID SUBDIVISION BEING A PART OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4) OF SECTION TWO ($2). TOWNSHIP ELEVEN SOUTH
(T11S), RANGE SEVENTEEN EAST (R17E) OF TiiE 6TH P.M., JEFFERSON COUNTY,
KANSAS
NOTES:
1. THIS SITE PLAN IS BASED ON KANSAS STATE PLANE COORDINATES SYSTEM,
NORTH ZONE (NAD83)(GRID), IN US SURVEY FEET. VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD88).
2. REFERENCE SURVEY: TiiE HARBOR, INC., PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 19. BY LEDOIT A,
MEEKS, LS-73, DATED MARCH 19, 1996.
3. PROPOSED BUILDING LOCATION PER CLIENTS REQUEST,
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2021
PREPARED BY: Kelly Drake Woodward, AICP

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING V

CU2021-02: A request to consider a Conditional Use application for a seasonal recreational use to include hiking
and primitive camping for small groups. This request is on property located at 4190 Republic Rd, Oskaloosa, KS
66066 and is brought by owners Timothy and Sherry Emerson of 2829 Missouri St, Lawrence, KS 66046.
Date of Application: May 20, 2021
Type of Request: Conditional Use Permit
Owner/Applicant: Timothy and Sherry Emerson Address: 4190 Republic Rd, Oskaloosa, KS 66066
General Location:
North and east sides of Republic Rd between 37th and 46th Streets
CAMA #:
Existing Zoning:

Existing Land Uses:
Lot Size:
Notification:
Floodplain:
Roads Report:
Water:
Wastewater:
Signage:
Prior
Application/History:

44-221-02-0-00-00-008.00-0
Site:
Agricultural (AG)
North: AG
East:
Ag and RR
South: AG and RR
West: AG
Site:
Agricultural (future homesite)
North: Farm homesite and Agricultural
East:
Farm Homesite & Agricultural
South: Agricultural
West: Agricultural
77.65 acres (Conditional Use area is approximately 10.92 acres)
Published and notified as required
Small area of floodplain around a creek potentially affecting the northeast corner of the
recreational space
See attached letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department
See attached letter from RWD No. 13
See the attached letter from the Jefferson County Health Department
Will have a trailhead sign on-site as shown on the development plan
None

EXISTING CONDITIONS:
The approximately 77-acre property is currently a natural area with various outbuildings including a dilapidated
home, agricultural structures, and various sheds. The property owner has applied to build a house and barn on the
north side of the property (not within the legally described area for the conditional use and not intended to be used
for the conditional use).
APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
This application is for a recreational use of a portion of the property for trails to be shared with nonresidents by
appointment. Improvements include parking on grass (not gravel as indicated by the development plan), nature
trails, a trailhead sign, port-a-potty, and future off grid cabin for primitive camping. Please consult the attached
application for the Statement of Intent with more details about this use as provided by the applicant.
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CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
This property is within the Ag Enhancement Area of the Comprehensive Plan. The subject parcel does not contain
any areas of known sensitive habitat per the Comprehensive Plan. The property is within a View Corridor along
Republic Road. This recreational use focused on natural setting supports the retention of this view corridor. It also
supports retaining and promoting appreciation of the rural sense of place in the County. It supports preservation
of natural features and clean recreation and a private tourist destination, all in support of Comprehensive Plan
goals.
INFRASTRUCTURE AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
Improvements are needed to provide3 driveway access for this Conditional Use. A recommended Condition of
Approval is provided. Included is a statement from Jefferson County Rural Water District #13 on water availability,
however no improvements requiring water are planned for this Conditional Use. The Health Department indicates
no concerns with the port-a-potty but recommends a future permanent wastewater system if the business is
successful.
STAFF ANALYSIS - APPLICATION:
The applicable performance standards for the AG district and for Conditional Uses have been met. Staff has no
concerns about this low-impact recreational use.
a. Whether approval of the Conditional Use would be consistent with the intent and purpose of these
regulations;
Staff Comment: The intent of the Conditional Use regulations is that certain uses may be permitted based
on a case-by-case evaluation of each particular site, with the opportunity to apply conditions and safeguards
to mitigate any anticipated issues. Staff does not anticipate any negative impacts associated with this use
and has identified several public benefits.
b. Whether the location of the proposed use is compatible to other land uses in the surrounding
neighborhood;
Staff Comment: The proposed low-impact recreational use is compatible with this rural environment.
c. Whether the proposed use places an undue burden on the existing transportation and service facilities in
the area affected and, if so, whether such additional transportation and service facilities can be provided;
Staff Comment: No additional transportation or service facilities are necessary.
d. Whether the proposed use is made necessary or desirable because of changed or changing conditions in
the area affected;
Staff Comment: The application is not related to changed or changing conditions in the area.
e. The length of time the subject property has remained vacant or undeveloped as zoned; provided, the use
of land for agricultural purposes shall be considered as viable use of the land and not be considered as
allowing the land to be vacant or undeveloped;
Staff Comment: Not applicable.
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f.

Whether the applicant’s property is suitable for the proposed use;
Staff Comment: Staff finds this factor is met.

g. The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff Comment: Staff recommends approval of this beneficial use.
h. Whether the proposed Conditional Use would be in conformance to and further enhance the
implementation of the Comprehensive Plan;
Staff Comment: Per previous discussion, staff finds this factor is met.
i.

Whether the relative gain to the public health, safety, and general welfare outweighs the hardship imposed
on the applicant by not upgrading the value of the property by approving the proposed Conditional Use;
and,
Staff Comment: Staff finds that the public benefits of this project merit approval of this use and upgrading
of the value of this property.

j.

Whether the proposed Conditional Use, if it complies with all the conditions upon which the approval is
made contingent (as authorized in Article 22 of these Regulations), will not adversely affect the property in
the area affected.
Staff Comment: No adverse impact is anticipated from this use.

k. Such other factors as may be relevant from the facts and evidence presented in the application.
Staff Comment: None.
ATTACHMENTS:
A. Application/Development Plan and Applicant Statement of Intent
B. Development Plan
C. Notification map and letter
D. Zoning map
E. Floodplain map
F. Ag Enhancement Map
G. Jefferson County Health Department letter
H. RWD No. 13 Letter
I. Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department letter
ACTIONS:
Per Section 16-104 of the Zoning Ordinance the Planning Commission, in the process of reviewing a Conditional Use
Permit and associated Development Plan, may approve the plan conditioned on limitations or restrictions to protect
the public interest and surrounding properties. Such limitations may pertain to signage, outdoor lighting, off-street
parking and other paved surfaces, landscaping, fencing, screening, structural alterations to buildings, control of
anticipated nuisance impacts and any other conditions deemed necessary.
The Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of the following:
1. Approve the Conditional Use Permit and Development Plan.
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2. Approve the Conditional Use Permit with conditions or stated modifications to the Development Plan as
deemed necessary to carry out the spirit and intent of the applicable regulations.
3. Deny the application with findings of fact.
4. Continue the application to allow further analysis.
EFFECT OF DECISION:
The proposed Conditional Use Permit, if approved by the County Commission with or without conditions, shall
become effective upon publication of the adopting resolution, and the Development Plan shall be filed in the office
of the Zoning Administrator and an affidavit shall be recorded with the Jefferson County Register of Deeds indicating
approval of a Development Plan. The applicant may proceed with construction based on the entire Development
Plan or may elect to develop the property in phases. All Conditional Uses approved with a Development Plan shall
have construction begun within one (1) year of said approval by the Governing Body. Any revisions or alterations
to the property must be made in accordance with the Development Plan. Minor adjustments may be approved by
the Zoning Administrator, or more major adjustments approved by the Planning Commission and Governing Body
before any work can proceed.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use and associated Development Plan for a private recreational
facility nature trails and primitive camping with the condition that road access shall be approved and permitted by
the Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department.
Recommended motion:
After review of application CU2021-02, a Conditional Use and Development plan application for a private
recreational facility with nature trails and primitive camping located at 4190 Republic Rd, Oskaloosa, KS, and
associated Development Plan, and staff report dated June 28, 2021, the Planning Commission recommends
approval of the application with the following condition:
1. Road access shall be approved and permitted by the Jefferson County Road and Bridge Department.
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Planning & Zoning Department
JEFFERSON

COUNTY K S

Jefferson County Courthouse w\vw.jfcountyks.com/planningand2oning Phone: (785) 403-0000

P.O. Box 628 Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Process for Rezoning Request, Conditional Use Permit,
and/ or Development Plan Amendment
1. Pre-submittal meetine: All applicants requesting a change in zoning classification, a Conditional Use Permit, and/or
a Development Plan Amendment should consult with the Planning & Zoning staff at least seven (7) working days
prior to submitting a formal application.
2. Application submission: Staff requires two (2) hard copies of the application for initial review. Staff may also
require an electronic copy of the initial application materials. Staff will determine the completeness, accuracy, and
sufficiency of the application within five (5) working days of submission. This period does not include the review of
the final submitted application. Application forms are available in the Planning & Zoning office and online.
3. Applicant, Owner, and/or Asent: Complete applications must be signed by the owner(s) of record or a signed
contractor's affidavit shall be required. At the time of the submission, a sign will be provided for posting on the
property. The Application is submitted with the appropriate application fee as established by the County. Any fees
incurred by the County for any specialist/professional review shall be paid by the applicant/propertY owner prior to
publication of final determination.
4. Anulication Packet: a complete application MUST include the following materials and documents:
Completed and signed application form.
D Letter from Rural Water District serving property in question.
Letter from Jefferson County Health Department addressing wastewater.

fS Reviews of road access from appropriate agency - KDOT and/or Jefferson County Road & Bridge Department.
Copy of Real Estate Deed (Register of Deeds Office).
Copy of Paid Tax Receipts for all real estate & personal property owned by the Applicant and/or Property Owner
(Treasurer's Office).

^ Development Plan: shall meet the standards outlined in Article 16, Section 103. Required for CUPs/
CommerciaI/Industrial Rezoning.
a Any required Affidavits (e.g. Affidavit for Authorization ofAgent(s))
Legal description of parcel that is to be rezoned and/or designated area for Conditional Use Permit.
D Professional Review Fee Disclosure form.

D Articles of Incorporation and documentation of authorized agent (if applicable).
D Copy of current State or Federal permits/licenses (if applicable).
D Any other supplementary documents requested by staff (varies on a case-by-case basis).

5. A legal notice will be placed in the official County newspaper, at least 20 days prior to the public hearing. The
applicant will be sent a copy of the publication and a receipt for the application fee.
6. The Planning Office will notify adjoining property owners within a 1,000 feet radius of the subject property. If a city
is affected, the proposal will be reviewed by that city and provide its recommendation to the Planning Commission
within a 30 day period.
7. The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing to hear all persons who wish a voice in the proposed request.
The applicant or representative is required to appear to present the case. Following the public hearing, the Planning
Commission will make a recommendation to approve or deny the request.

8. The final determination will be made by the Board of County Commissioners no sooner than the 14 days after the
public hearing in accordance with State Statute. The applicant will be notified in writing of the date and time of their
hearing with the Board of County Commissioners.

9. Board of County Commission approval is official upon publication in the County newspaper and for Conditional Use
Permits or Development Plan Amendments, an Affidavit shall be filed with the Register of Deeds.

^INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED TO THE APPLICANT **
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Planning & Zoning Department
Jefferson County Coufthouse

JEFFERSON

COUNW K S

Phone: (785) 403-0000
Toll Free: (844) 679-0748

w'ww.jfcountyks.com/plamungandzomng

P.O. Box 628

Fax: (785) 403-0783

Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066

APPLICATION FOR A REZONING REQUEST, CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT, AND/OR DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT
This form must be completed and filed at the Office of the Zoning Administrator in accordance with directions on the
accompanying instruction sheet. AN INCOMPLETE APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED
1. Name of ALL Applicant(s)/ Owner(s) and/or Agent(s). (Use separate sheet if necessary)
Applicant/ Owner: ->C\^o-^\^ c^i Sh^rr^ fc^nws^A Agent:.

Address: 2S2C\ ^\\SS>o\^\ S'h _ Address:_
|_^^oe-nC£City

KS
State

{0 {<y
Zip

City

State

Zip

Phone: ( -i9? ) KO^SW /T.-^ ^t-00^ O^^hone: ( ).
2. The Applicant hereby requests:
to

D A change of zoning from:.
n A Conditional Use for the following:.

DA Development Plan Amendment for the following existing CUP:.

3. This property address is: Hi ^D ^pu.^C- -^?J ., Os-^ab^A^ K5 bkDJo^ /' tZ2C>
^7^^-^^

^^JL

'i!

The property is legally described as (Lot and Block OR Metes and Bounds):.

The general location is (use appropriate section):

A. At the (NW) (NE)((SW) (SB) comer of Rs^-b^

and

k.^\\

B. On the (N) (S) (E) (W) side of ^A^-y»c- _between 31-^K
(Strcct/Road)

-,or

(Street/Road)

(Street/Road)

(Strcct/Road)

and (4 ^P -^
(Strcct/Road)

4. Please attach a statement of intent. (Conditional Use or Development Plan Applicants, including Amendments)
I QVe), the applicant(s), acknowledge receipt of the instruction sheet explaining the method of submitting this
application. T (We) realize that this application cannot be processed unless it is completely filled in, submitted with
all relevant and/or requested documentation and accompanied by the appropriate fee.

OR Authorized Agent

OR Authorized Agent:
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JEFFERSON COUNTY
ROAD DEPARTMENT
P.O. BOX 322

OSKALOOSA, KS 66066
PHONE (785)403-0279

FAX (785) 863-3026

BEN DOMANN
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
March 22, 2021

Sherry Emerson

2829 Missouri St
Lawrence, KS 66046

785-218-0069
sheiTy.tno@gmail.com
Re: 044-221-02-0-00-00-008.00-0
S02, TH, R19, Acres 77.65

Dear Ms. Emerson:

After reviewing the above, my findings are:

1. The existing field entrance on the E side of Republic approx. 2025ft South of 46th St
meets current Road Dept. Standards of30'width for a residential entrance.

If you have any further questions, please call.

Phil Hoffman
Road Dept Superintendent
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Jefferson County Register of Deeds

wsfsh

Document ^200705860

Page 1 of

3/30/2021

Common Checkout Payment Receipt

Payment Receipt Confirmation
Your payment was successfully processed.

Transaction Summary
Receipt Confirmation
Amount

Description
Jefferson County Tax or Escrow Payments

$1,431.37

Portal Processing Fee

$1.50
$1,432.87

Customer Information
Customer Name
Local Reference ID

SHERRY EMERSON
3019530070

Receipt Date
Receipt Time

3/30/2021
03:03:19 PM CDT

Electronic Check

Account Number

******6774

Payment Information
Payment Type

Order ID

62616072

Name on Account

Sherry Emerson

Phone Number

7852180069

Billing Information

Billing Address
Billing City, State
ZIP/Postal Code
Country

2829 MISSOURI ST
Lawrence, KS

66046
us
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11 Factors Check Off Sheet for
Conditional Use Requests
Name:

Case

Number:

Because of particular conditions associated with their activities, certain uses which might have an adverse

effect upon nearby properties or upon the character and future development of a district are not permitted outright in
districts, but are permitted as Conditional Uses when their proposed location is supplemented by additional
requirements so as to make the use requested compatible with the surrounding property, the neighborhood and the
zoning jurisdiction.
In approving a Conditional Use, the minimum requirements of approval for all similar types of permitted
uses in the same district must be met unless otherwise reduced by specific reference in the recommendation of the
Planning Commission or the approval of the Governing Body. The requirements may be made more stringent if there
is a potentially injurious effect which may be anticipated upon other property and the neighborhood or contrary to the
welfare and convenience of the public.

The Planning Commission may recommend approval of a Conditional Use, and the Governing body may
approve such Conditional Use, using the following factors as guidelines.
1. _ Whether approval of the Conditional Use would be consistent with the intent and purpose of
these Regulations;
2. _ Whether the location of the proposed use is compatible to other land uses in the surrounding

neighborhood;
3. _ Whether the proposed use places an undue burden on the existing transportation and service

facilities in the area affected and, if so, whether such additional transportation and semce
facilities can be provided;
4. _ Whether the proposed use is made necessary or desirable because of changed or changing

conditions in the area affected;
5. _ The length of time the subject property has remained vacant or undeveloped as zoned;

provided, the use of land for agricultural purposes shall be considered as viable use of the
land and not be considered as allowing the land to be vacant or undeveloped;
6. _ Whether the applicant's property is suitable for the proposed use;
7. _ The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
8. _ Whether the proposed Conditional Use would be in conformance to and further enhance the

implementation of the Comprehensive Plan;
9. _ Whether the relative gain to the public health, safety, and general welfare outweighs the

hardship imposed on the applicant by not upgrading the value of the property by approving
the proposed Conditional Use;
10. _ Whether the proposed Conditional Use, if it complies with all the conditions upon which the
approval is made contingent (as authorized in Article 17 of these Regulations), will not
adversely affect the property in the area affected; and,
11. _ Sucli other factors as may be relevant from the facts and evidence presented in the
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application.

WATER AVAILABILITY FORM
Rural Water District
At their discretion, the Rural Water District may choose to provide you with a letter stating the requested information below.

Jefferson County, Kansas Planning and Zoning
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa,KS 66066
Complete and submit form with original signatures to the Planning and Zoning Office
Applicant Information: (copies are not accepted)

Property Owner(s): Timothy and Sherry Emerson
Address: 2829 Missouri St

City: Lawrence

Contact Person: Sherry Emerson

Phone: (785)218-0069
State: KS Zip: 66046
Phone:(785)218-0069

Email and/or Alternate Contact: sherry.tno@gmail.com
I certify that I am the owner or authorized representative of the above noted property. I have examined this form and know the same
to be true and correct. I understand that this form will be used solely for Jefferson County Zoning purposes and is not a contract with
the below listed Rural Water District. I understand that this form does not guarentee approval from the Jefferson County, Kansas
Board of County Commissioners for my proposed project. I understand that information submitted is subject to the Kansas Open
Records Acfc^ ^ ^\

Sign:

77

•r^-\
4^-^ >^w-^--^- _ pnnt: _ Sh^,^.^
^r^rs^^ ^ Date: ^-^e^
~J~

Proposed Project Information: To Be Completed by Applicant
Proposed Project Type: OAg Lot Split 0C.U.P. OPIatted Subdivision* (No. of Lots: )
*Please note that in order for this form to be accepted as part of a Platted Subdivision Auplication to the Jefferson County
Zoning office - Certification of Public Water Availability Question number 2 and/Or 4 must be marked "Yes."

X.

Yes

No

s

Yes

No

2. Is the above RWD currently capable and willing to provide water to the entire project marked above?

Yes

No

3. Will improvements to the RWD infrastructure be required in order to accomodate the request?

Yes

Have you spoken with the Jefferson County Zoning office regarding this potential change to the property?
What is the general location of the property?

On the NW ^SwV NE / SE corner of 'R^tAb^O and K^p^ic

^ .—OrF

•^

On the(R) S llj) W of K^J^C- Between 3^1 "^ _ and

Certification of Public Water Availability: to be Completed by the RWD Authorized Representative

Rural Water District (RWD) Name: ^fL^^f^s^ C^ ^W & 13
1. Does the above RWD provide water to the subject property of the application currently?

4. Has the RWD entered into an agreement with the applicant in order to provide water
.Yes

for their entire proposed project?

/ certify that I am an authorized representative of the above RWD. I understand that information submitted is subject to the
Kansas Open Records Act K.S.A 45-215. Please note that both signature lines are required to be completed.

Rural Water District Board Chairman:
Sign:

Print:

Date:
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Rural
Water District Clerk or Board Secretary:
Date:

^

No

K

Nc

y/h

WATER AVAILABILITT FORM
Rural Water District
At their discretion, the Rural Water District may choose to provide you with a letter stating the requested information below.

Jefferson County, Kansas Planning and Zoning
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa,KS 66066
Complete and submit form with original signatures to the Planning and Zoning Office
Applicant Information: (copies are not accepted)

Phone: (785)218-0069

Property Owner(s): Timothy and Sherry Emerson
Address: 2829 Missouri St

State: KS Zip: 66046
Phone: (785)218-0069

City: Lawrence

Contact Person: Sherry Emerson
Email and/or Alternate Contact: sherry.tno@gmail.com

I certify that I am the owner or authorized representative of the above noted property. I have examined this form and know the same
to be true and correct. I understand that this form will be used solely for Jefferson County Zoning purposes and is not a contract with
the below listed Rural Water District. I understand that this form does not guarentee approval from the Jefferson County, Kansas
Board of County Commissioners for my proposed project. I understand that information submitted is subject to the Kansas Open
Records Act.

Print:

Sign:

Date:

Proposed Project Information: To Be Completed by Applicant
Proposed Project Type: OAg Lot Split 0C.U.P. OPIatted Subdivision* (No. of Lots: )

Zoning office - Certification of Public Water Availability Question number 2 and/Or 4 must be marked "Yes.'

Have you spoken with the Jefferson County Zoning office regarding this potential change to the property?

Yes

No

1. Does the above RWD provide water to the subject property of the application currently?

Yes

No

2. Is the above RWD currently capable and willing to provide water to the entire project marked above?

Yes

No

3. Will improvements to the RWD infrastructure be required in order to accomodate the request?

Yes

No

Yes

No

What is the general location of the property?
On the NW/ SW / NE/ SE corner of _ and
Or:

On the N /S / E/Wof

Between

and

Certification of Public Water Availability: to be Completed by the RWD Authorized Representative
Rural Water District (RWD) Name:

4. Has the RWD entered into an agreement with the applicant in order to provide water
for their entire proposed project?

/ certify that I am an authorized representative of the above RWD. I understand that information submitted is subject to the
Kansas Open Records Act K.S.A 45-215. Please note that both signature lines are required to be completed.

Rural Water District Board Chairman:
Sign:

Print:

Date:
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Water District Clerk or Board Secretary:

Print:

Date:

WATER AVAILABILITY FORM
Rural Water District
At their discretion, the Rural Water District may choose to provide you with a letter stating the requested information below.

Jefferson County, Kansas Planning and Zoning
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Complete and submit form with original signatures to the Planning and Zoning Office
Applicant Information: (copies are not accepted)

Property Owner(s):

Phone:

City:

Address:

State:

Contact Person:

Zip:

Phone:

Email and/or Alternate Contact:
I certify that I am the owner or authorized representative of the above noted property. I have examined this form and know the same
to be true and correct. I understand that this form will be used solely for Jefferson County Zoning purposes and is not a contract with
the below listed Rural Water District. I understand that this form does not guarentee approval from the Jefferson County, Kansas
Board of County Commissioners for my proposed project. I understand that information submitted is subject to the Kansas Open
Records Act.

Print:

Sign:

Date:

Proposed Project Information: To Be Completed by Applicant
Proposed Project Type: OAg Lot Split OC.U.P. OPIatted Subdivision* (No. of Lots: )
*Please note that in order for this form to be accepted as part of a Platted Subdivision Application to the Jefferson County
Zoning office - Certification of Public Water Availability Question number 2 and/Or 4 must be marked "Yes^'

Have you spoken with the Jefferson County Zoning office regarding this potential change to the property?

Yes

No

1. Does the above RWD provide water to the subject property of the application currently?

Yes

No

2. Is the above RWD currently capable and willing to provide water to the entire project marked above?

Yes

No

3. Will improvements to the RWD infrastructure be required in order to accomodate the request?

Yes

No

Yes

No

What is the general location of the property?

On the NW/ SW/ NE / SE corner of _ and
Or:

On the N /S/ E /Wof

Between

and

Certification of Public Water Availability: to be Completed by the RWD Authorized Representative
Rural Water District (RWD) Name:

c

4. Has the RWD entered into an agreement with the applicant in order to provide water
for their entire proposed project?

/ certify that I am an authorized representative of the above RWD. I understand that information submitted is subject to the
Kansas Open Records Act K.S.A 45-215. Please note that both signature lines are required to be completed.

Rural Water District Board Chairman:
Sign:

Print:

Date:

Rural
Water District Clerk or Board Secretary:
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Jefferson County Planning Commission

Schedule for Application Deadlines 2021
PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING & ZONING OFFICE TO DISCUSS INITIAL REVIEW MEETINGS
All meetings are scheduled for the fourth Monday of each month and the application deadline will be on
the Thursday sb( weeks prior to the scheduled Planning Commission meeting unless otherwise noted. All
Planning Commission meetings take place in the Jefferson County Courthouse at 7pm, unless otherwise
published.
Application
Deadline

Planning Commission
Meeting Date

December 17, 2020

January 25, 2021

January 14, 2021

February 22, 2021

February 11, 2021

March 22, 2021

March 18, 2021

April 26, 2021

April 15, 2021

May 24, 2021

May 20, 2021

June 28, 2021

June 17, 2021

July 26, 2021

July 15,2021

August 23, 2021

August 19, 2021

September 27, 2021

September 16, 2021

October 25, 2021

October 14, 2021

November 22, 2021

*November 10, 2021

December 20, 2021

December 16, 2021

January 24, 2022

*Date of deadline changed because it fell on Veterans Day.

Jefferson County Courthouse

300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628

KS 66066
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www.jfcountvks.com/planningandzoning

Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
Phone: (785) 403-0000
Fax: (785) 403-0783
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FILED FOR RECORD

4101889

wi-T/.S.pcj^.^JL

CORPORATION WARRANTY DEED
THE GRANTOR, SMC Gamble, LTD. a corporation duly incorporated and
existing under the tows of th® State of Nevada, and its principal place of
business in the State of Nevada, hereby conveys and warrants to: Timothy W.
Emanon and Sherry L Emeraon, as joint tenants with the right ofsurvivorehip
and not as tenants in common,

ati the following described REAL ESTATE In the County of JEFFERSON. and

M UEC 21 P 2\ 2^
REGISTER OF DEEDS
FEE.

?.€>^

State of KANSAS, to-wit;

The North half (N1/2) of the Soutfweat Quarter (SW1/4) of Section
Two (2), Townahlp Eleven (11) South, Range Nlnotwn (19) Eaatoftfie
6th P.M. In JsffiBnon County Kansas.

for the sum of one dollar and other good and valuable consideration.
EXCEPT AND SUBJECT TO: Easements, restrictions and assessments of
record, and all the taxes and assessments that may be levied, imposed or
become payable hereafter.

Dated this if?aay of f^^mk^

.,2007.

SMC Gamble, LTD

By:

c*.Q^ &< (M^At^^

h;r(x4or

fffle

STATE OF KANSAS, COUNTyr OF JEFFERSON. SS:
The feregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ^^V{ day of
\}eC ~ 2007. bv j^wl H^{s^ "ofSMC Gamble.
LTD, on behalf of the corporation.

Notary Public

TCTBEYWWM

Notary Pttfc.StriBdFkxklt

^f//<

CBmnlNtoCDOeum

My appointment expires: ^ i

Uyoomm.oiplm 8^)127 2010

ENTERED IN TRANSFER RECORD IN MY

t^l/^r' DAYOF^

»///Mj2KAflo 01

inda W

COUNTY 0-ERK

After Recording Rctyra Tos
Kansay SecuiEs4'PUe

Gi'fS^Ii

< y.00
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Jefferson County Register of Deeds

Document #200705860

Page 1 of 1

Jefferson County Planning and Zttning

11619

P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066

DATF (5r-<^^^t/

785-403-0000 (Option 3)

$1 ^-€}0\ z>cj

RECEIVED FROM ^^SY^^ GfD^t^O^

7^? Uu^^f^n D^u.^<. ^^/^?
L UP p<2^
FOR
AMOUNT OF ACCOUNT
THIS PAYMENT
BALANCE DUE
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a CASH

|<T CHECK

^

[_] CREDIT CARD BY
II MONEY ORDER

DOLLARS

^WtJA^^K^
THANK YOU
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300JeffersonSt Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P.O. BOX 628 Phone: (785) 403-0000
www.ifcountyks.com/planningandzonin6 Oskaloosa, KS 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Date of Notice: 05/25/2021
Dear Property Owner:

NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, June 28th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via
Zoom Video Conference. This meeting format is being utilized in the interest of public safety. All reports will
be posted online at https://www.ifcountyks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning Commission) no
later than Wednesday, June 23rd.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing kwoodward(%ifcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone - and only
such persons - to observe or participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse. Face masks are
strongly recommended at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Written public comment must be received by the Planning and Zoning
Department by 3 pm on Monday, June 28th to be included in the meeting materials. Send correspondence
electronically to kwoodward^jfcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in the
drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
CU2021-02: A request to consider a Conditional Use application for a seasonal recreational use to include hiking
and primitive camping for small groups. This request is on property located at 4190 Republic Rd, Oskaloosa, KS
66066 and is brought by owners Timothy and Sherry Emerson of 2829 Missouri St, Lawrence, KS 66046.
You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article
30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to " ...all owners of record of
lands located within at least 1,000 feet of the area proposed to be altered...."
Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.

Respe^ftilly,
-.^yVi

Fake Woodward, AICP Erin George
"omihunity Development Director Planner II
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Timothy and Sherry Emerson
4190 Republic Rd (updated address pending)
Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Letter of Intent
785-550-1519 Tim 785-218-0069 Sherry
Please accept our application for a conditional use permit.

We are building a house and barn on the north side of our 77 acre property and would like to
use approximately 11 acres of the woods on the south side for recreational use.

Within the wooded area we have a small pond, a creek, and lots of hiking trails. The wooded
area sits far back from the road behind a hay field. While we have no intention of opening the
property to the public, we would like to offer paid, guided, private hiking and short term, primitive
camping for one or two very small groups at a time, by reservation only. This conditional usage
would be seasonal and discreet — pack it in, pack it out, leave no trace. No parties, large
gatherings, music, etc. The concept is to provide a safe, private space to unplug and reconnect

to nature (mostly for families with small children and for women). We would also like to use this
space for "field trips" for small groups of kids. For people driving by it might seem like maybe
someone's having a family gathering with a few cars parked on the grass, if they even noticed at
all.

The company arranging and conducting these visits is called The Nature Objective. It has no
physical location and there will be no signage, as privacy is necessary to keep the space safe.

TNO will operate exclusively online as a service and no physical address will be shared publicly.
Visitors will be sent a location pin and be met at the gate. I will receive company mail at this
property but the "company" will reside in my laptop, the equivalent of an in-home office. I have
received my FEIN for the company but I can't yet file with the state until I have the property's
new, updated address.
Thank you for your consideration.

Tim & Sherry Emerson
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SURVEY EXHIBIT CONDITIONAL USE AREA

ATRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 11 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST OF THE 6TH PX, JEFFERSON COUNTf, KANSAS

LEGEND:

EB

PREPARED FOR:

L/^sy

SHERRY EMERSON
JOB#2021.1053
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'tt"iin»n^1

SECTION CORNER FOUND AS NOTED
MONUMENT FOUND AS NOTED
OFF GRID CABIN (288 SQ. FT.) FUTURE PHASE
TRAIL HEAD SIGN
PORT-A-POTTY

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
POINT OF BEGINNING
P.O.B.
M
MEASURED DIMENSION
CALCULATED DIMENSION
c
PROPERTY LINE
SECTION LINE
PARKING AREA
P.O.C.

^

!^|!i LANDPLAN
SCALE: 1" = 200'
200 100 0 200 400

E IM G I N EERI NG

Lawrence, KS • Kansas City, MO • The Woodhmda. TX
1310 Wakarusa Drive, Suite 100
Lawrence, Kansas 66049

785.843.7530(p) | 785.843.2410(f)
info®landplan-pa.com | www.landplan-pa.com
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~~~.ijJefferson
•

~COUNTY

HEALTH DEPARTMENT
HOME HEALTH & HOSPICE

1212 Walnut Street
Oskaloosa, KS 66066-4200
(785) 403-0025
Public Health Fax
(785) 863-26S2
Home Health & Hospice Fax
(785) 863-3323
jeffersoncountyhealth.com

June 3, 2021

Timothy & Sherry Emerson
2829 Missouri
Lawrence, KS 66046
RE:

Environmental Consult
4190 Republic Rd.
Oskaloosa,KS 66066 (02-11-19)

The Jefferson County Health Department received a request for an Environmental
Consult for a Conditional Use Permit for the above referenced property.
The Jefferson County Health Department has no concerns with using a port-a-potty on
the site for your hikers and campers. Weekly pumping logs must be made available for
viewing at anytime by our agency.
If this business becomes successful it would be recommended that a permanent
wastewater system be installed.
If you have further questions, please feel free to contact me.

Jo n Heston, Environmental Specialist
Jefferson County Health Department
JH:kh
Cc: Community Development

April 27, 2021

My Files/Letters/consult. !tr. wpd
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